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(1)

us
(2011 )

( ) ()

277,468, 431. 31 10. 25
188,324, 986. 08 6. 96
169, 985,593.90 6. 28
119,936, 731.64 4. 43
117,933, 244. 94 4. 36
114,178, 449. 77 4 .22
109,948, 168.60 4. 06
107,929,523.16 3.99
69,929, 46[L. 23 2.58
29, 975,27Pp. 86 1.11

1,305,609, 8§70.49 48. 22

362,879, 072.58 13.40

243,970, 859. 30 9.01
119,940, 439. 72 4. 43
32,983,8401.04 1.22

759,774, 212.64 28.06

115,000, 000. 00 4. 25
6,013, 356.03 0.22
121,013, 356. 03 4. 47
5,000, 441. 31 0.18

516, 796, 927. 91 19.09

-432,927}| 15 -0.02

2,707,761, §81. 23
(222 253 ) 100.00
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(2011 )

( ) ()

486, 932,553.63 32.68

103,973, 161.19 6. 98
79,599,00p.11 5. 34
71,334, 11p.50 4. 79
56,557, 70Pp. 45 3.80
54,977,95p.61 3.69

853,374,498. 49 57.27

94,981,52[L.54 6. 37
69,678, 49p. 49 4. 68
64, 753, 95p. 80 4. 35
14,836,63p. 03 1.00

244,250, 602. 86 16. 39

72,838,67B.45 4.89
11,978, 40p. 30 0.80
6,316,861. 25 0. 42
91, 133,94p. 00 6. 12
5,000,800.00 0.34

296, 452,978.96 19.90

-128,691}| 93 -0.01

1,490,084, 128. 38
( 133,586

9
3
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(2011
( ) ()
19,969, 88p. 18 10. 44
10, 994,55 . 47 5.75
9,999, 057. 88 5.23
9,991,550. 43 5.23
9,980, 253. 83 5.22
8,993,017.67 4. 70
69,928, 31Pp. 46 36.57
25,982, 15p.57 13.59
19,979,16p.00 10. 45
14,975,58p.08 7.83
8,995,063. 13 4. 70
69,931, 97p. 78 36.57
4,902,229.00 2.56
9,997,491. 35 5.23
36,311, 7501.12 18.99
145, 756.|75 0.08
(19213,’221875, 520. 46 100.00
(2011
( ) ()
7,595, 933.52 20. 35
3,004,240. 16 8.05
2,993,174. 39 8.02
2,699, 757. 49 7.23
16, 293,10p.56 43.64
2,496,840. 81 6.69
6,432,994. 80 17.23
4,801, 655. 53 12.86
6,942, 188. 32 18.60
365, 717./61 0.98
(3 73,7323324, 502). 63 100.00
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(

50

, 618

(2011
( ) ()

94,698,86F. 57 12.38
69,913, 48pP. 44 9.14
62,852,50B.20 8. 22
56, 756,58p. 27 7. 42
38,000, 00p. 00 4. 97
36,872,33B.69 4. 82
29,822,02B. 49 3.90
14,928,16p.19 1.95
403,843, 974.85 52.79
73,950,07p. 02 9.67
73,872,24B.20 9.66
147,822,31Y5. 22 19. 32
35,062, 32p. 97 4.58
21,993,94p.60 2.88
14,933, 26B. 31 1.95
71,989, 53p. 88 9.41
140,976, 173. 23 18. 43

334,005.|79 0.04
764,966, 001. 97 100.00
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(2)

Us
(2011 )
) )
()

I TALY GOVT CP @011 23 114,200,(10(01.0)0.01,178,41.4&1.[[)171,178,414%.277

L- BANK BW FOERDOERBK CH 2011 14 107,000,(1.0((IJ.(IJ(I])(B,961,17&1.&)8)'5,961,'37&.587

ENI COORDI NATI N CP 2011 13 95,000, pD.OO®E, 994, PpB3Q®4, 994, PR3y U 4

SUMI TOMO TRUST |[BKG CD 2011 21 82,000, ppoQ@@, 000, pD.OQ@R, 000, PD.OQDO

BUNDESI MMOBI LI HN 62011 24 78,000, ppoOoQ@ao, 961, BL.1IQ&T, 961, BA.1§&% 0

BK OF WEST AUS |CP 72011 70,000, pD.OOWB®, 953, BB3Q|®BD, 953, BB3y& 2

SNCF CP 2011 16 65,000, pD.OO@EA, 994, PR6Q@®3, 994, P2.64® 3

BNP PAR AUS CP 62011 23 65,000, pp.oQ@e, 988, PH.OO®BH, 988, PB.OYRS5

FMS WERTMGT CP 72011 15 65,000, pD.OQ@WEA, 965, PB.70|®&, 965, PB.74® 0
1JSTANDARD CHARTHRED BK |CP 62011 13 65,000, pD.OQ@EA, 955, BAOOQGBSH, 955, B2A.04QA 9
13MI TSUBI SHI CORPA FI N 2011 12 60,000, pD.OQ@B®, 000, PDOQ@B®, 000, PD.OADO
14CAlI SSE DES DEP(QTS CP 2011 16 60,000, PD.OOWB®, 994, pB.70B4L, 994, pB.7B 4
14MI TSUBI SHI  UFJ |[TRUST D 2011 31 60,000, PD.OOWB®, 986, pY.700B®, 986, pZ.713 0
14NORI NCHUKI N BANK CD 2011 16 60,000, PD.OOWB®, 977, L28Q&BB, 977, L2857
194MI TSUBI SHI CORPA FI N 2011 17 55,000, pD.0Q®®, 000, PD.OQ@B®, 000, PD.OQDO
14BELGI UM CP 2011 50,000, pD.O0Q@®®, 000, PD.OQ@B®, 000, PD.OYDO
14sSuMI TOMO MI'T BKG CD 2011 30 50,000, pD.O0Q@®®, 000, PD.OQ@B®, 000, PD.OYDO
1§suMI TOMO MI'T BKG CD 2011 10 50,000, pD.O0Q@®®, 000, PD.O@B®, 000, PD.OYDO
194S0C GEN HK CD 2011 10 50,000, pD.OO®®, 980, pRBOQGH®, 980, PpB.OYSH 0
2QMlI ZUHO CORP BK |SYD CD 2011 12 50,000, pDOO®®, 967, PRAQ@®®, 967, PRAGDO
231 NTESA SP | RELAND CP 62011 27 50,000, pDOQ®®, 947, LD3Q®@B, 947, LD3§B7
23MI TSUBI SHI UJF |IBKG CD 2011 19 45,000, ppoo@me, 969, pD.OQ®A, 969, pD.0OG & 7
23CAlI SSE DES DEP(QTS CP 2011 43,000, ppog@m@, 998, f¥u6Q@®2, 998, FH659D3
24S0C GEN HK CD 2011 11 43,000, ppog@me@, 975, IB6Q®R, 975, LB.6YDG6
294SUMI TOMO TRUST |[BKG CD 2011 19 42,000, ppog@me, 000, ppOQ@®2, 000, pD.OYDO
24gTOYOTA FI N AUS |CP 011 23 40,000, pPDOOQ@®, 994, BB5Q BB, 994, BB5488
21BUNDESI MMOBI LI N CP 2011 28 40,000, ppog@m®, 971, pB.300BH, 971, pB.348 4
24SUMI TOMO CORP (AP CP 2011 26 40,000, PDOOQ@®, 969, pR6QBO, 969, f 6426
294SUMI TOMO CORP (AP CP 2011 27 40,000, pPDOOQ@®, 969, pU8Q@D, 969, pUs4s1l
3¢BNP PARIBAS CD 2011 33,000, ppOQ@R2, 983, pH.1O@42, 983, BU.1AD 4
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(2011 )
) )
()
BARCLAYS BK AUY CP 2011 10 72,000, ppoQ@a, 662, pD.7Q0w@A, 662, pH.7856 0
I NTESA SP | RELAND CD 2011 65,000, pp.oo@e, 753, PE6Q@®A, 753, PH63BO
NRW BANK CP 72011 64,000, pp.OQ@WE, 000, pD.OQ@WE, 000, PH.OZD®O
BK OF WEST AUS |CP 72011 14 60,000, pD.09YB®, 687, BOH.19YBD, 687, BA4.1QD 9
BK NED GEMEENTHN CP 72011 55,000, pp.oQ@wea, 977, pPB.OQGBH, 977, P50 B 1
DEUTSCHE BK AUY CP 62011 15 54,000, p0.09YBB, 711, pF.79BB, 711, pF.7B 0
SUMI TOMO TRUST |[BKG CD ?011 21 50,000, pD.O0Q@W®®, 000, PD.OQ@B®, 000, PD.OJ®DO
BK TOKYO MI T CH 2011 50,000, ppOQ®®, 770, FB.1Q®*D, 770, yB.134 3
Ml ZUHO CORP BK |[SYD CP 011 24 48, 000, p0.OoY®mCO, 683, BG.79Y®BT, 683, BH.721® 8
1QsuMI TOMO MI'T FIIN AUS P 72011 46,000, ppog@®, 000, pD.OQ@®, 000, PD.OYDO
13STANDARD CHARTHRED BK |CP 62011 15 42,000, poo9g®ma, 599, y®59%21, 599, fB57YF7
14GE CAP AUS FDG 011 15 40,951, ppog@@, 981, BH.70®®, 981, BB.77%5 6
13L- BANK BW FOERDERBK CH ?011 11 40,000, ppog@®, 973, 1.1Q®BD, 973, [B.148 9
14BELGI UM CP ?011 12 40,000, ppoo@m®, 967, BB.0QGBD, 967, BB.0GQ& 1
194BNP PAR CD 2011 16 40,000, ppoQ@®, 946, pD.4QGBD, 946, pD.4g8& 7
14ENI COORDI NATI QN CP 72011 14 40,000, PpO.OYMWB®, 631, IT39YBVO®, 631, LZ.39&0
11TOYOTA FI N AUS |CP 2011 27 35,000, pp.oo@e, 902, PH.20JBSH, 902, PB23 4 9
1YNESTLE AUS CP 2011 18 32,000, ppoQ@a, 949, LB.1®AE, 949, LD.1YHS8
14sSs0O0C GEN PARI S (P 2011 30,000, p0.O9Y®R®, 776, FORAQ®RD, 776, Y240 ® 2
20STANDARD CHARTHRED BK |CP ?011 11 30,000, p0.09®R®, 734, BB3YRD, 734, BB3QU 3
21BNP PARIBAS CD |CD 2011 12 30,000, p0.09®R®, 732, pBBY®WD, 732, pBBQ® 2
241SUMI TOMO MI'T FIIN AUS P o011 27,000, ppOQ@®, 898, Br200®%, 898, Br.28 59
23sS0C GEN PARI S (P 2011 27,000, p0.09®RG, 780, PBAY®RS, 780, PK4§®B 3
24MlI ZUHO CORP BK |SYD CP 2011 27 24,000, p0.09®RB, 739, LOA49Q®RB, 739, LBAHB 2
294MI TSUBI SHI  UFJ |[TRUST HKG CD 2011 12 23,000, ppog@2, 981, pR.1IQ®2, 981, pR.194% 4
24gSUMI TOMO TRUST |[BKG CD o011 22,000, pp.oQg@2, 000, pD.OQ@2, 000, PD.O4YD O
21NATL AUS BANK 52011 15 20,811, ppoo@®@, 828, pB.1O®D, 828, PB.14 B9
24NESTLE AUS CP 52011 16 20,000, ppog@®, 973, BB.1Q@®, 973, BB.134 7
294SOCI ETE GEN HK |CD 2011 27 15,000, p@O99N®, 836, pB29Y9N3A}, 836, pB.20® 3
3QRABOBANK NED 2011 14 12,000, ppog@a, 978, pDOO@AA, 978, pM.OYEBO
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(2011 )
) )
(
SUMI TOMO TRUST |[BKG CD 2011 10,000, pODOQ@®@, 000, pDOO@@, 000, PH.OYDO
NORDEA BANK CP 52011 10 10,000, PDOQ®D, 999, 087 .0D®, 999, Q57 488
I TALY T-BILL 011 16 10,000, PDOQ®@D, 997, 4941 099, 997, 451 2435
SOCI ETE GEN PAR CP 72011 10,000, PDOQ®D, 992, 293 .0D®, 992, %53 .4AB8
HSBC BANK FRANJE CD 2011 15 10,000, PDOO®D, 989, 636 00D, 989, 36 .24
BNP PARI BAS CD 2011 10 10,000, PDOQ®D, 989, 528 O®®, 989, 558 AR6
MI TSUBI SHI UFJ |[BKG CD 2011 10,000, pDOQ@D, 982 15.9.(15)'9 982, %9 2AR7
BK OF WEST AUS |CP 2011 11 10,000, pDOO@D, 980 25.3.(]8)15) 980, %3 223
SCHLUMBERGER CH ?011 13 10,000, PDOQ®@D, 977, 589 .0W®, 977, §&9 Q@0
1QNORI NCHUKI N BANK CD 62011 21 10,000, PDOQ®D, 975, 585 .0008, 975, §&5 @8
131 NTESA SP | RELAND CD @011 24 9,000 a0 oo®, 995, a3 DB, 995, &3 .7D3
14sSUMI TOMO CORP (P o011 9,000 a0 oo®, 993, QU7 @B, 993, QU7 @7
1§STANDARD CHARTHRED BK |CP 2011 16 8,000 a0 Qo , 997, 9a0 .Q®Z , 997, 960 .Yyad2
14L- BANK BW FOERDERBK CH 2011 27 8,000 a0 oo, 996, Yo7 096, 996, Y=7 .Y86
14MI ZUHO CORP BK |CD 62011 6,000 a0 OW®, 000, A0 QW®, 000, QB0 .4yato
14qSuUMI TOMO MI TSUI| BKG CQ @011 24 5,000 a0 Qw®, 000, A0 QW®, 000, Q@0 .§a0
11GE CAP EUROPEA FDG 011 12 4,900 a0 ome, 902, 429 e, 902, 229 H®BO
1gMI TSUBI SHI CORPA FI N CH 2011 14 3,000 a0 ome, 996 59.6.(18)9 996, 5§46 595
14FMS WERTMGT CP 2011 22 2,000 ao oqmwa, 995 39.2.451)1 995, 3942 Q%7

43/264



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oo00o0o00oo00bDo00noOO(ELD4857)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(2011 )
) )

() ()
MANI TOBA PROV 10.pRp0O11 15 3,000, a0 .qm@, 006, 15.0@B, 006, §B5 .60
BANK NED GEMEENTEN 4.002011 25 3,000, Jao.gqmwa, 004, 240.0D8, 004, 2480 .056
BANK OF NOVA sSdOTI A 4. 42011 3,000, Jao.gqwa, 000, 18 .08, 000, §B8 .46
SOC GEN PARI S (P 1. 112011 19 3,000, Jaogme, 993, Y714 092, 993, JB4.029
ROYAL BK OF CANADA 4. 92011 2,900,0(10.0(1(2,918,43.5.(19.43,918,437511&4
CANADI AN | MP BK BA 1. 13J2011 2,800,0(10.0@(2,797,55.8.(]8)[2,797,558.4'8)0
L- BANK BW FOERDOERBK CH 1.08011 2,700, Oqac @@, 699, 7187 .002, 699, 157 289
I NTESA SANPAOL(JQ CD 1.172011 14 2,500,0(10.0@(2,496,841.0.(18)22,496,8450.68)1
NATL BK OF CANADA BA 1.1y2011 15 1,800,0(10.0(00.,796,041.4.45)51,796,0414.8&9
ALBERTA TSY 4. Jo11 l,500,0(10.0@0.,503,159.45)1,503,1519.(]537
NATL BK OF CANADA BA 1. 1y42011 17 l,200,0(10.0@0.,199,5&4.45)&,199,584.2&6
ONTARI O PROV T-|BI LL 1.032011 25 l,200,0(10.0@0.,199,341.9.(]5)(1,199,3439.2&0
BK OF MONTREAL 4.962011 14 510,00(1..(01(1 513, 74a.p$a 513, 74a. §a
CANADA T-BIl LL 0.92011 12 500,00(1..@1@ 499,925...010) 499, 929. @6
TORONTO DOMI NI N BK B4 1.08011 21 300,00(1..((IJ® 299,58&..UJGD 299, 58®. @O
ONTARI O PROV 4. 7182011 27 95, 00p1.0@1 95, 76p1 .01 95, 76p0.036
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(2011 )
( (
) )
()
I NTESA SP | RELAND CP 2.712011 38,000, ppoQg@m@®, 000, pD.OO@®, 000, PpH.OYDO
ACOSS CP 2.892011 31 38,000, pDOQ@CT, 924, POD5Q®BY, 924, pH 594 9
SUMI TOMO MI' T BKG CD 3. 142011 18 37,000, pD.OQ@CT, 000, pD.OQ@T, 000, PH.OYHLO
BANQUE ET CSE HPARGNE |CP 2.55011 24 37,000, pDOQ@®, 872, BBB8O@BB, 872, BB88YB9
SOCI ETE GEN PAR CD 3.222011 11 36,000, pDOQ@®, 984, L9 BB, 984, L1297 G0
TOYOTA FI N AUS 3.92011 25 35,000, pDOQ@®, 062, BR20Q®BB, 062, B2.25d 7
DEUTSCHE BAHN (P 2.602011 26 35,000, p@.Oo9yY9MmE, 796, pB6YBH, 796, pB8.6HYBS5
BK NED GEMEENTHN CP 3.242011 32,000, ppog@ma, 991, pB2BI, 991, p8B2YB S5
NRW BANK CP 3.132011 18 30,000, ppog@®, 968, pBOQORD, 968, pBIYQ2A 2
1qQL- BANK BW FOERDOERBK CH 2.88011 30,000, pDOQ@®, 933, pPD1Q®@®, 933, pPD.19BO
13 TEMASEK CP 2.592011 28 30,000, p0O.O9Y®RX®, 822, p239YND, 822, p2.390at9
13BK TOKYO MI TSUBI SHI ca 2.642011 27,000, ppOoQ@®, 889, pUL5Q®&, 889, pA.555 8
13JCAI SSE DES DEP(QTS CP 2.742011 13 25,000, ppoga@e, 928, pD8O@H, 928, 182D 1
14RABOBANK NED 3.202011 22,000, ppoQg@a, 993, pue6Q@a, 993, pA6g&0
14BNP PARI BAS CD 3.4y2011 24 22,000, ppoQg@a, 965, pu2g®2, 965, pa.2852
1gNED WATERSCHAPYBANK CH 2.642011 15 22,000, ppoga@a, 935, ppog@a, 935, BHIOGDS5
11BK OF WEST AUS |CP 2.78011 14 20,000, ppOQ@®, 940, PD50ED, 940, PD55B 2
14DB AUSTRALI A CH 2.642011 20,000, ppoOQ@®, 908, pn.2ge®d, 908, p2A.2¢g 06 2
194BK OF WEST AUS |CP 2.6122011 20 17,000, p@O9N®, 908, L1BGB8YADB, 908, L1B582YB 3
20dBNP PAR LONDON |CD 3.08011 16,000, ppOOQ@®, 000, PDOQ@®, 000, PDOQDO
2INED WATERSCHAPYBANK CH 3. 152011 16 16,000, pDOQ@G, 986, L DB8O@S, 986, LD.B8QD 4
231RABOBANK AUS CH 2.592011 12 15,000, ppoo@me, 928, LB6QAMSA, 928, LB.699 9
23BK TOKYO MIT COD 3.02011 27 10,000, pDOO@D, 982, A7 Q®B, 982, A7 D2
241 NTL FI NANCE 5.052011 18 8,000, 0a00®m®, 004, 5721098, 004, 5721 .0%6
291 ADB 6. 32011 19 6,881, 00000®, 928, 6§91 .03%, 928, D1 935
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(2011 )
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(3)
2011
uUs
(2001 12 31]) 926, 291 76, 03D 0.01 1
(2002 12 31]) 931,218 76, 434 0.01 1
(2003 12 31]) 1,115, 284 91,54B 0.01 1
(2004 12 31]) 1,137, 455 93, 36Pp 0.01 1
(2005 12 31]) 1,039, 313 85, 30 0.01 1
10
(2006 12 31]) 1,038, 296 85,22 0.01 1
11
(2007 12 31]) 1,210, 943 99, 394 0.01 1
12
(2008 12 31]) 1,941,353 159, 346 0.01 1
13
(2009 12 31]) 2,115, 435 173,635 0.01 1
14
(2010 12 31]) 2,585,318 212,203 0.01 1
2010 2,239,369 183,807 0.01 1
2,246,481 184,391 0.01 1
2,254,928 185, 084 0.01 1
2,361,420 193,825 0.01 1
2,450, 422 201,131 0.01 1
10 2,512,483 206, 225 0.01 1
11 2,553,334 209,578 0.01 1
12 2,585,318 212,203 0.01 1
2011 2,587,789 212,406 0.01 1
2,619,845 215,037 0.01 1
2,670,378 219,185 0.01 1
2,707,762 222,283 0.01 1
MRERES LU 7BRESEREFHED OB
1
HFAOHEMMF USEIL - =Tz 0U
2001 18~2011 a0 (BRFEL
6.0% ( £6H18 $£4H308) B.EID&
RS ()
5.0% — 7EMTSEANARD (AW) - 12500
e S . 42,000
30% | 1,500
2 0% 41,000
1.0% 4500

Dluﬁ . 1 1 1 1
200165R 2003558 2005558 2007458 20085
¢ )

0
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(2001 12 31|) 178, 116 15, 968B 0.01 1

(2002 12 31]) 214,820 19, 259 0.01 1

(2003 12 31|) 249, 576 22,374 0.01 1

(2004 12 31)) 319, 243 28,62p 0.01 1

(2005 12 31|) 473, 779 42, 47H 0.01 1
10

(2006 12 31]) 509, 444 45,67p 0.01 1
11

(2007 12 31|) 700, 316 62, 78 0.01 1
12

(2008 12 31]) 1,325, 158 118, 800 0.01 1
13

(2009 12 31|) 1,625,629 145, 738 0.01 1
14

(2010 12 31]) 1,765, 1§10 158, 242 0.01 1

2010 1,747, 596 156, 672 0.01 1

1,751, 358 157,009 0.01 1

1,745, 5973 156, 491 0.01 1

1,849, 1§60 165, 777 0.01 1

1,725, 442 154, 686 0.01 1

10 1,736, 627 155,689 0.01 1

11 1,749, 8829 156, 872 0.01 1

12 1,765, 1§10 158, 242 0.01 1

2011 1,599, 061 143, 396 0.01 1

1,556, 8§70 139,573 0.01 1

1,552, 866 139, 2144 0.01 1

1,490, 084 133,586 0.01 1

HARERES LU 7HETFESFEREFNDD OfS
T EEEE——————

~ Kl
8.0% (2001458 1B~ 201 1#£4A308) [E'_E!m&
S0y | MREEEGEW 1800
6.0% — JHESERRFED (EH) 4 1.600
il I i 1,400
LT R Ly PR o oEEEE R {1200
40% ! éhngu
sm:::::::::::::::::::::::--:: """ {600

10% | ~--------- {200

0.0% ' : 0

200155R 2003%5R 2005558 2007558 2008¢5H
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(2001 12 31|) 132, 040 16, 07P 0.01 1
(2002 12 31]) 92,65P 11, 288 0.01 1
(2003 12 31|) 71, 50P 8,708 0.01 1
(2004 12 31)) 67,01P 8,161 0.01 1
(2005 12 31]) 85, 066p 10, 358B 0.01 1
10 X
(2006 12 31]) 75, 49p 9,193 0.01 1
11
(2007 12 31|) 107, 188 13,059 0.01 1
12
(2008 12 31]) 177,208 21,579P 0.01 1
13
(2009 12 31|) 179, 226 21,824 0.01 1
14
(2010 12 31]) 200, 2130 24,38p 0.01 1
2010 201, 155 24, 49p 0.01 1
199, 971 24,35p 0.01 1
199,009 24, 23 0.01 1
206, 700 25,17p 0.01 1
200, 514 24,41y 0.01 1
10 200, 850 24,4588 0.01 1
11 196, 790 23, 968 0.01 1
12 200, 2130 24,38p 0.01 1
2011 197,079 23, 99B 0.01 1
193, 486 23,561 0.01 1
191, 066 23, 266p 0.01 1
191, 218 23,28p 0.01 1
) 1999 19

VRERES L U7 HETIIFREFIE D O

5% (2001£E6H 18~ 201 1#E4A308) EEE%E—DD}
40% HRAER (58

a5y - o - HEFOERRRED (B8 T e
B -8 o

e I S 160
BBl NI 100
1.0% 50
0.5%

0.0 - ' ]

L HEET 2003%5R 2005558 2007558 20034¢5H
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(2003 12 31]) 22,81 1,976 0.01 1

(2004 12 31]) 31, 49p 2,728 0.01 1

(2005 12 31]) 24,81 2,149 0.01 1
10

(2006 12 31]|) 25, 75p 2,231 0.01 1
11

(2007 12 31]|) 31,430 2,723 0.01 1
12

(2008 12 31]) 39,60p 3,430 0.01 1
13

(2009 12 31]|) 32,858 2,846 0.01 1
14

(2010 12 31]|) 39,428 3,415 0.01 1

2010 28,77 2,493 0.01 1

28,6810 2,484 0.01 1

41,998 3,638 0.01 1

41, 78D 3,619 0.01 1

40, 845p 3,538 0.01 1

10 40,595p 3,516 0.01 1

11 39,98p 3,463 0.01 1

12 39,428 3,415 0.01 1

2011 38,63 3,347 0.01 1

37,247 3,226 0.01 1

37,141 3,217 0.01 1

37,33B 3,234 0.01 1

) 2003 11

HRERNS LU 7BRT9FRENED Ot
A DNEMME 175 - RJb - = b 77 U7

(2003E6H1 18~ 201 1448308 (BRAFYEL)
4 5% B0
400  VORAMEE (

hH)
o — TEMTSEARARD (£W) I |

czB8888
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(2004 12 31|) 47,296p 3,130 0.01 1

(2005 12 31|) 101, 070 6, 688 0.01 1
10

(2006 12 31]) 332,503 22,00p 0.01 1
11

(2007 12 31]) 400, 344 26, 4911 0.01 1
12

(2008 12 31]) 1,008, 206 66, 71 0.01 1
13

(2009 12 31|) 927, 635 61, 38p 0.01 1

14 -

(2010 12 31]) 810, 415 53,62p 0.01 1

2010 873,836 57,82p 0.01 1

842,113 55,728 0.01 1

830, 783 54,978 0.01 1

821,519 54,36p 0.01 1

818, 392 54,158 0.01 1

10 794, 394 52,56P 0.01 1

11 796, 591 52,71p 0.01 1

12 810, 415 53,62p 0.01 1

2011 798, 700 52, 85D 0.01 1

795,522 52,64D 0.01 1

792,989 52,47P 0.01 1

764, 966 50,618 0.01 1

) 2004 23

WRERES LU 7 HRTSFEREFNE D Ot

A IHEMMF —a—3—52F - Bl -fi— kI 1 U
(200445 7A238~ 201 14E48308) iﬁﬁrﬁzﬁlg

| FEEEE (GH)
% — 7EETSEAERED (kW) 1.200
1,000
800
400
200

20045 7H 2006577 200eETH 201075
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(10,000 )

us
S T Y GO T IR S )|
3.64p28 4.32f95 3.65p86 — —
1.20p97 3.86B97 2.61Pp07 — —
0.631L75 4.05p23 1.75p59 1.11B93 —
0.81658 4.67p10 1.34p80 1.48p96 2.41p13
2.50B55 4.79p31 1.38p95 1.82Pp44 6.09B90
10 4.29437 5.01F07 2.14p81 3.00p08 6.62[86
11 4.50B12 5.65425 3.25p16 3.58pP57 7.23B73
12 2.21595 6.22p10 3.53pP59 2.51B95 7.48[15
13 0.50p86 2.69p12 O0.49p28 0.32138 2.46p68
14 0.22p67 3.77p30 0.37p55 0.36H80 2.25B20
( )
( )
2011
(10,000
(10,000 )
us
S T Y G T IR N )|
2010 28 0.01595 0.28pR31 0.02p74 0.01f06 O0.15p78
2010 30 0.02p42 0.35194 0.02f10 0.031L68 0.19075
2010 30 0.02f95 0.33p28 0.02Bp98 0.04B43 0.18p51
2010 31 0.03144 0.35B66 0.03B32 0.04047 O0.21B28
2010 30 0.02b78 0.33p64 0.03B88 0.04fF12 0.20B85
2010 10 20 0.02p59 0.31F97 0.03B41 0.04B31 0.20p78
2010 11 3p 0.01B76 0.35p87 0.04fF13 0.05p34 0.22p86
2010 12 3p 0.01f27 0.34p76 0.05p07 0.05454 0.20F561
2011 8 1) 0.01p46 0.36Ff53 0.05B38 0.05f27 0.19p01
2011 28 0.01fF81 0.32145 0.054W04 0.04F85 0.21404
2011 31 0.01P04 0.35pP96 O0.06L59 0.05M22 0.19B99
2011 28 0.01p16 0.31B13 0.06484 0.04F48 0.16510
) 2011 28
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us
() C ) () () ()
2010 28 0.20f91 3.68p11 0.27p36 0.22p38 1.99[509
2010 30 0.29p22 3.89p66 0.29p74 0.35p40 2.12p87
2010 30 0.34pPp05 4.01B40 0.35p59 0.52B39 2.24p87
2010 31 0.35B61 4.03B93 0.38p05 0.47B01 2.43p72
2010 30 0.31B65 4.02p78 0.41p20 0.57B29 2.54000
2010 10 2P 0.25Pp15 4.00p03 0.48B43 0.54p10 2.55p23
2010 11 3p 0.21B98 4.07p54 0.53f57 0.59fF00 2.51Pp18
2010 12 3p 0.21p11 4.17p24 0.60p18 0.66B57 2.50[58
2011 81 0.22196 4.19p13 0.66p89 0.65B23 2.50478
2011 28 0.23pP16 4.19p33 0.70k45 0.61p72 2.52p14
2011 31 0.22pB18 4.15581 0.72p17 0.60B07 2.34p94
2011 28 0.19f762 4.14fF05 0.84p23 0.60p90 2.15p19
) 2011 28
10,000
C ) )
us
3.64pP28 4.32f95 3.65p86 — —
1.20p97 3.86PB97 2.61Pp07 — —
0.63175 4.05p23 1.75p59 1.11B93 —
0.81p58 4.67p10 1.34p80 1.48p96 2.41p13
2.50B55 4.79p31 1.38p95 1.82p44 6.09B90
10 4.29437 5.01F07 2.14p81 3.00p08 6.62[86
11 4.50B12 5.65pK25 3.25p16 3.58p57 7.23B73
12 2.21595 6.22p10 3.53pP59 2.51B95 7.48[15
13 0.50p86 2.69p12 0.49p28 0.32138 2.46p68
14 0.22p67 3.77p30 0.37p55 0.36480 2.25B20
) (10,000 )

() 100x(a-b) b
a ( )
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197,110, 7180, 9286, 857, 0045, 2®%2, 629, 1p8, 593
(197,110, 80,0286, 857, p4as, 2@2), 629, 08, 593)
124,312, 696, 41®3, 820, 0024, 588, 121, 7B0, 501
(124,312,p96,@1ND3, 820, p24, §DB), 121, 7180, 501)
141,106, 703, 60242, 700, 0036, 42D1, 528, 447, 775
(141,106, 03,6042, 700, P36, 4R2DY), 528, Ba7,775)
117,628, 366, 3UTU5, 411, 314, 3uB3, 745, 499, 839
(117,628,B66,3UTY, 411, B14,BUB3, 745,499, 839)
167,525, 143, 86527, 339, 489, 48B@3, 931, 454, 204
(167,525,p43,(85R7), 339, #89,@4BW3, 931, P54, 204)

Lo 155, 768, 598, 64®B5, 870, 288, 06043, 829, 564, 785
(155,768, 598,(6UBY, 870, P88, (06T3, 829,564, 785)

11 116,112, d47, 738,847, 2f0, 6421, 094, 341, 882
(116,112,p47, 138), 847, 270, 4201, 094, B41,882)

Lo 255,634, 4993, 7D%2, 594, 0003, 90B4, 135, 331, 684
(255, 634,Pp93,(7DH), 594, p03,(90BY, 135, B31,684)

L3 213,805, 473, 5886, 397, §04, 1891, 543, §01, 023
(213,805,Pp73,58B8, 397, B04,(1D®B), 543,501, 023)

14 258, 183, 431, 8241, 195, 136, 12%8, 531, 7196, 741
(258,183, p#31,(824), 195, 136, (12%9, 531,96, 741)
19,082, 3p9, 3326, 374, 6p5, 07B7, 811, 6Pp4, 560
(19,075, 240, 3859, 576, 455, 4007, 811, §04, 560)
34,177,818, 91%0, 507, 4B1, 40241, 481, 9p2,071
(34,177,818, 91%0, 507, 431, 402y, 481, 492, 071)
73,609, OP6, 6540, 134, 2Pp6, 4024, 957, 6p2, 323
(73,609, 926, 65740, 134, 296, 4029, 957, §22, 323)
57,738,005, 2150, 771, 311, 8891, 924, 3P5, 660
(57,738,015, 20509, 771, 311, 88D), 924, §25, 660)
103,656, 457, 188, 202, 5p1, 7147, 377, 9B1, 073
(103,656,157, IB®), 202, 551, 70473, 377, 931, 073)

1o 71,569, 0p2, 2888, 002, 5p1, 1590, 944, 4B2, 202
(71,569, 002, 2889, 002, 501, 1609, 944, 432, 202)

11 100,686, 647, 4®4, 599, 4B0, 7920, 031, 618, 814
(100, 686,p47, 484), 599, 430, 7029, 031, 448, 814)

Lo 182,577, d95, 220, 092, 978, oRB2, 515, 7166, 006
(182,577,Pp95,@22DY, 092, p78,0RB), 515,66, 006)

13 218, 797, 9§82, 6B®B8, 750, 453, 3B®2, 562, 895, 264
(218,797,582 ,6B8Y, 750, #53,(38BMJ, 562, P95, 264)

L4 237,299, 122, 52243, 351, 153, 4206, 510, 964, 368
(237,299,p22,(52243, 351, 153,(4R0§, 510, P64, 368)
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53,278,516, 7409, 957, 152, 6003, 203, 9p4, 305
(53,278,516, 7409, 957, 52, 6003, 203, 454, 305)

28,058, 5B8, 351, 996, 54, 448, 265, 918, 211

(28,058, 5§38, 36D), 996, 574, 449) 265, 918, 211)

9,741,2d0,6281,856, 1p2, 060, 150, 9246, 776

(9,741,2p0, 62801, 856, 92, 0§0), 150, 9p6, 776)

6,099, 658, 2536, 548, 7391, 0576, 701, 853, 972

(6,099, 658, 2539, 548, 7B1, 057§, 701, 863, 972)

9,003,0d2,9777,198, 252, 6358, 506, 604, 314
(9,003,0p2,97(77, 198,252, 6359, 506, 6p4, 314)

Lo 5,620, 113, 5406, 577,084, 7997, 549, 633, 055
(5,620, 113,540,577, 0B4, 7999, 549, 6B3, 055)

11 11,806, 9W5,888B,637,804,3920, 718, 774, 539
(11,806, 945, 8§B), 637, 8p4, 3qa0, 718, 7174,539)

Lo 16,726, 4b8, 44Dd, 724, 4715, 83007, 720, 767, 151
(16,726, 458, 44D) 724,45, 830a), 720, 7157, 151)

L3 11,177, 1p9, 8700, 975, 2B4, 3127, 922, 612,718
(11,177,169, 87009, 975, 284, 300y, 922, 42, 718)

L4 13,216, 4p8, 2761, 118, 06, 2080, 020, 9B4, 786
(13,216, 408, 2(76), 118, 0066, 20089, 020, 484, 786)

1999 19

7,025,562, 1414, 743, 823, 8272, 281, 738,314

(6,014,319, 21094, 743, 8p3,82(7), 270, 4p5, 392)

3,369,354,9392,501,548, 2063, 149, 5715, 047
(3,360,5K8, 9080, 481, 49, 2533, 149,55, 047)

1,358, 439,9842, 026, 674, 2352, 481, 340, 796

(1,358, 4B9, 9842, 026, 64, 2359, 481,340, 796)

1o 945,273,948 850,729,382 2,575, 8§85, 362
(945, 27B,948)(850, 72p, 38202, 575, 885, 362)

11 1,694,106,0701, 126, 902, 7833, 143,088,649
(1,694, 1p6, 0700, 126, 9p2, 7833, 143, 0B8, 649)

Lo 2,611,849, 0501, 794, 980, 3013, 959, 957, 398
(2,611, 8k9, 0500, 794, 9B0, 30(13, 959, 957, 398)

L3 1,597,328,9242, 271,520, 4573, 285, 765, 865
(1,597,3p8, 9249, 271,5p0, 45(73, 285, 7p5, 865)

L4 2,166, 776,0131,510, 270, 6463, 942, 271, 232
(2,166,776, 01380, 510, 20, 6463, 942, 21, 232)

2003

11
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0,5943, 370, 43
70,5943, 370, 4

1,0944,729, 63
B1, 0949, 729, 6

9,500
39, 500)

B0, 4310, 434, 1
30, 4310, 434, 1

p 6, 3280, 107, 0
26, 32809, 107, O

13, 603
43,603)

10

66, 85383, 158, 1
66, 86383, 158, 1

B7, 7493, 250, 2
37, 7493, 250, 2

72,716
72,716)

11

51,610, 1
(51,610, 1

b9, 3204, 826, 0
49, 3204,826, 0

D7, 0180, 034, 4
07, 0180, 034, 4

15,018
15,018)

12

111,799, 3
(111,799,

09,2%4,013, 1
309, 7%4) 013, 1

13,3880, 820, 6
13,3880, 820,

10,886
610, 886)

13

94, 448, 9
(94,448, 9

35,492,506, 0
35,4892, 506,

72,088,763, 4
D72, OR) 763, 4

74,293
74,293)

14

64,350, 2

67, 7186, 072, 2

(64,350, 2

70, 2081, 041, 4

67, 7056, 072, 2

71, 805

70, 208), 041, 4

71,805)

20

04 23
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(1)

100

12 ( ) 12 ( )

MMF

(a) (b)
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2010 ( )

) 2010 (
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(2)

MMF

(1)

12 ( )
12 )
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10

(2)
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(1)

() MMF

() MMF
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397 (

(1)

(1)
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14

(2)

(3)
MMF
MMF
MMF
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MM F
( ) MMF
( )
MM F

( ) MMF
( ) MMF
()
()

MM F

MMF
()
( )
()
()
( )
MM F ( MM F

MMF

(4)
MMF 12 31
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(5)

MMF

90

90
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(2)

(3)

MMF

(4)
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MMF 2
129 5
MMF 23 103 1 3 7
MMF
23 4 28 UFJ
82.08
89.65
121.77
86.62

66.17
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2011
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Uus

2010 12 31

2010 20009

6 485, 054,488,813, 2426,556, 98%, 011, 795

7 25,746, 722,113,2912,860,004, 055,549

2,4,5,081, 915,147706, 8 8 3,16,2628 6, 296 ,143487, 411, 212

2,592, 716,26182, 810,21,81625, 713 ,147048, 478, 557

8 7,398,624 607,27910,278,303843, 643

7,398,624 607,27910, 278,303843, 643

2,585, 318,201622, 202 ,29,01715, 435 ,117035, 6 34, 913
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Uus

2010 12 31

2010 20009

2,3 7,736,402 635,00412,314,90%, 010, 807

7,736,402 635,00412,314,90%, 010, 807

10 110, 909 9,103 100,617 8,259
82,257 6, 752 74,625 6,125
10 88, 496 7,264 80, 284 6,590
10 44,132 3,622 40, 037 3,286
10 1,268,736 104,138 1,152,902 94,630
28,722 2,358 36,115 2,964

737,150 60, 505 807,590 66, 287

2,360,402 193,742 2,292,170 188,141

12 (5,376,000)441, 262)10,022, 736822, 666)
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2010 12 31

2010
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20009

2,115, 435,117035 634 ,19,1934 1,

2,581, 834,231119, 916 ,29,6113 8,

(2,111, 95 1(,137632,)3 4 8(, 19,6986) 3 ,

353,145192, 346, 288
059,177355, 491, 943

978(,106412,)203, 318)

2,585, 318,201622, 202 ,29,0171 5,

435,117035 634, 913
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2010 12 31

2010 20009
6 303,043,928, 167,8828,540,1236, 453,623
7 6,337,744 568,17927,672,579, 480, 847

2,4,5,471, 731,103712, 940 ,16,92185, 6 04 ,151055, 254, 444

1,781, 112,175394, 676 ,17,574 1, 817 ,124270, 188, 914

8 16, 003,061,434, 6746, 188, 238,451, 276

) 16,003,061, 434,6746, 188, 238, 451, 276

1,765, 109,165783, 242 ,10,86225, 6 28 ,194852, 737, 638

2011 20
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2010 12 31

2010 20009

3 78,292,630,018,9382,812, 288,734,621

78,292,630,018,9382,812, 288,734,621

2,025,527 181,588 1,848,786 165, 744
561,144 50,307 503, 356 45,126
604,308 54,176 542,076 48,597
302, 155 27,088 271,038 24,299
8,627,638 773,468 7,744,384 694, 284
23,811 2,135 28,527 2,557

585,874 52,524 613, 063 54,961

12,730,457, 141,28%1,551, 230, 035,568

(65,562, 178)877,648)1,261,063)699, 053)
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2010 12 31

2010 20009

1,625, 628,194852, 737,1633825, 157 ,161980, 800, 387
2,372,992,221225, 738,27,51387, 975,189266, 152, 033

(2,233, 51 1(,250304,)2 3 4(,13,0898)7 , 50 4(,15639%4,)2 14, 781)

1,765, 109,165783, 242,10,86225, 628 ,194852, 737, 638
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2010 12 31

2010 20009

6 37,565,430,574,3435,260,968, 293,728
7 996, 923 121, 395 892,416 108,669

2,4,5161,956,2%90, 721,4143,575,412, 483, 185

200,518,628, 417, 1%%9, 728,836, 885, 583

8 308, 792 37,602 502,425 61,180

308, 792 37,602 502,425 61, 180

200,209,834, 379,5%49, 226,431,824, 403

2011 20
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10
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2010 12 31
2010 20009
3 951,700 115,889 1,704,008 207,497
951,700 115,889 1,704,008 207,497
8,805 1,072 147,501 17,961
6,352 773 35,021 4,265
6,840 833 39,257 4,780
3,420 416 18,863 2,297
97,713 11,899 535,491 65,207
2,308 281 2,592 316
84,574 10,299 68,542 8,346
210,012 25,573 847,267 103,172

(741,688) (90, 315) (856, 741)(104, 325)
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2010 12 31

2010 20009

179,226, 431,824, 4037,207,526,578,567
132,164,088, 093,6201, 771,628,610, 440

(111,180,663)538, 4609, 752,843)364,604)

200,209,834, 379,5%49, 226,431,824, 403
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2010 12 31

2010 2009

( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
6 7,028,001 608,765 7,397,561 640,777
7 31,888 2,762 3,130 271

2,4,532,596,759,823,5325,609, 702,218, 313

39,656,648, 435,0593,010,398,859, 360

8 233, 935 20, 263 152,735 13,230

) 233,935 20, 263 152,735 13,230

39,422,713,414,7982,857,6608, 846, 131

2011 20
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2010 12 31
2010 2009
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
3 245,510 21,266 207,744 17,995
245,510 21,266 207,744 17,995
9,284 804 10,780 934
3,589 311 3,116 270
3,865 335 3,744 324
1,933 167 1,872 162
55,874 4,840 53,157 4,604
201 17 (631) (55)
30,279 2,623 17,936 1,554
105,025 9,097 89,974 7,794

(140,485)(12,169) (117,770)(10,201)
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2010 12 31

2010 20009

32,857,660, 846, 1339,599,578,430, 115
21,667, 760,876,8615,973,290, 383,606

(15,102,701)308, 1082, 715, 20%5)967,591)

39,422,713,414,7982,857,660, 846, 131
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2010 12 31

2010 20009
( ) « ) ) « )
6 148,272, 749, 811, 20189, 018, 729,507, 374
7 5,012,179 331,656 294,259 19,471

2,4,5661,821,408,792,7224,672,229,274,961

815,106, 3806, 935,5883, 985,282,801, 806

8 4,691,601 310, 443 6,350,529 420, 215

4,691,601 310, 443 6,350,529 420, 215

810,414, 789,625,1837,634, 763,381,592

2011 20
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2010 12 31

2010 20009

2,3 25,696,941, 700, 3633,249,652,200, 130

25,696,941, 700, 3633,249,652,200, 130

10 1,151,652 76,205 1,340,023 88,669

276, 787 18,315 338,008 22,366

10 298,078 19,724 364,008 24,086
10 149, 039 9,862 182,004 12,043
10 4,264,220 282,163 5,200,118 344,092

8,964 593 21,663 1,433

377,782 24,998 536, 287 35, 486

6,526,522 431,860 7,982,111 528,176

12 (19,170, 42%5)268,5025,267,543)671, 953)

84/264



12

31

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oo00o0o00oo00bDo00noOO(ELD4857)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2010 12 31

2010 20009

927,634, 763,381, 39208, 206, 668712, 999
643,502,648, 580, 5924,489,363, 496, 861

(760,722, 7BR)337(020p5,060(BZ0B28, 268)

810,414, 789,625,1837,634, 763,381,592
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MMF
2010 12 31
MMF 1996 7 5 1996 7 17
MMF 1990
MMF
Uus
2006 6 23 MMF
MMF
1990
ASB MMF
GAAP
MMF
1
MMF

MMF
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MMF
MMF
us
us
usDh AUD EUR CAD
NzZD
1
0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01
MMF MMF
MMF
FRS 3
MMF

MMF FRS 1
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2010

2009

2010

2009

MMF
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Us
UsD AUD EUR CAD NzZD
2,423,033 23,128,232 371,849 352,025 11,495,905
5,324,069 56,190,729 583,340 112,606 15,907,264
(10,700) (1,026,331) (3,489) (219,121) (1,706,222)
7,736,402 78,292,630 951,700 245,510 25,696,947
4,744,712 24,117,696 906,356 412,506 19,010,212
7,708,411 30,117,352 804,696 53,807 16,387,102
(138,218) (1,422,765) (7,044) (258,569) (2,147,660)
12,314,905 52,812,283 1,704,008 207,744 33,249,654
us
usD AUD EUR CAD NzD
2,081,744,460  1,467,086,564 161,788,730 32,297,272 659,994,718
2,081,744,460  1,467,086,564 161,788,730 32,297,272 659,994,718
1,686,118,078  1,281,490,793 143,506,139 25,597,952 741,511,390
1,686,118,078  1,281,490,793 143,506,139 25,597,952 741,511,390
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MMF
MMF
MMF
MMF
MMF
MMF
MMF
us
2010
usD UsD UsD usD usD
696 485,053,792 485,054,488
25,746,722 25,746,722
809,589,609 1,167,428,991 104,896,876 2,081,915,476
809,590,305 1,652,482,783 104,896,876 25,746,722  2,592,716,686
1 7,398,624 7,398,624
7,398,624 7,398,624
809,590,305 1,652,482,783 104,896,876 N/A N/A
N/A

89/264



us
2009

2010

2009
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usbD UsSD UsD usD usD
457 426,556,500 426,556,957
12,860,004 12,860,004
436,635,141  1,199,675,428 49,985,878 1,686,296,447
436,635,598  1,626,231,928 49,985,878 12,860,004 2,125,713,408
10,278,303 10,278,303
10,278,303 10,278,303
436,635,598 1,626,231,928 49,985,878 N/A N/A
AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD
864 303,043,054 303,043,918
6,337,744 6,337,744
415,029,762  1,056,701,310 1,471,731,072
415,030,626  1,359,744,364 6,337,744 1,781,112,734
16,003,061 16,003,061
16,003,061 16,003,061
415,030,626  1,359,744,364 N/A N/A
AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD
596 328,539,540 328,540,136
27,672,579 27,672,579
331,820,951 953,783,554 1,285,604,505
331,821,547  1,282,323,094 27,672,579 1,641,817,220
16,188,238 16,188,238
16,188,238 16,188,238
331,821,547  1,282,323,094 N/A N/A
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2009

2010
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EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
702 37,564,728 37,565,430
996,923 996,923
36,159,328 116,817,657 8,979,305 161,956,290
36,160,030 154,382,385 8,979,305 996,923 200,518,643
308,792 308,792
308,792 308,792
36,160,030 154,382,385 8,979,305 N/A N/A
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
468 35,260,500 35,260,968
892,416 892,416
49,563,891 94,011,581 143,575,472
49,564,359 129,272,081 892,416 179,728,856
502,425 502,425
502,425 502,425
49,564,359 129,272,081 N/A N/A
CAD CAD CAD CAD CAD
445 7,027,556 7,028,001
31,888 31,888
14,361,158 18,235,601 32,596,759
14,361,603 25,263,157 31,888 39,656,648
233,935 233,935
233,935 233,935
14,361,603 25,263,157 N/A N/A
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2009
CAD CAD CAD CAD CAD
470 7,397,091 7,397,561
3,130 3,130
9,813,705 15,795,999 25,609,704
9,814,175 23,193,090 3,130 33,010,395
1 152,735 152,735
152,735 152,735
9,814,175 23,193,090 N/A N/A
2010
NzD NzD NzZD NzD NzD
280 148,272,467 148,272,747
5,012,179 5,012,179
197,871,536 454,943,905 9,005,963 661,821,404
197,871,816 603,216,372 9,005,963 5,012,179 815,106,330
1 4,691,601 4,691,601
4,691,601 4,691,601
197,871,816 603,216,372 9,005,963 N/A N/A
2009
NZD NZD NZD NZD NZD
564 189,018,235 189,018,799
294,259 294,259
246,137,627 498,534,597 744,672,224
246,138,191 687,552,832 294,259 933,985,282
1 6,350,529 6,350,529
6,350,529 6,350,529
246,137,191 687,552,832 N/A N/A
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Us
LIBOR BBSW
EURIBOR
CDOR
NZ Bank Bill Rate bps 100 1%
25 50

2010
+50bps +25bps +6.25bps -10bps

us -0.05% -0.02% -0.01% 0.01%
-0.05% -0.03% -0.01% 0.01%
-0.05% -0.02% -0.01% 0.01%
-0.04% -0.02% -0.01% 0.01%
-0.06% -0.03% -0.01% 0.01%

+6.25bps

2009
+50bps +25bps +6.25bps -10bps

Uus -0.05% -0.02% 0.01% 0.01%
-0.04% -0.02% 0.00% 0.01%
-0.05% -0.03% -0.01% 0.01%
-0.03% -0.02% 0.00% 0.01%
-0.06% -0.03% -0.01% 0.01%

+6.25bps

93/264



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oo00o0o00oo00bDo00noOO(ELD4857)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MMF
5%
MMF
Uus
2010
18.90% 17.09% 18.83% 17.74% 18.31%
10 <10 0.78% 6.68% 4.01% 0.00% 7.41%
10-30 <=30 23.94% 16.40% 13.53% 28.10% 16.88%
31-60 <=60 28.64% 29.74% 32.11% 35.50% 36.97%
61-90 <=90 22.87% 30.09% 27.02% 18.67% 19.31%
91-180 <=180 4.87% 0.00% 4.50% 0.00% 1.12%
181-365 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
2009
20.19% 20.36% 19.72% 22.41% 20.25%
10 <10 0.95% 4.89% 8.68% 0.00% 3.77%
10-30 <=30 19.72% 15.61% 19.01% 29.73% 22.39%
31-60 <=60 29.71% 36.11% 30.75% 37.56% 24.41%
61-90 <=90 29.43% 23.03% 21.84% 10.30% 29.18%
91-180 <=180 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
181-365 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
us
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2009 2010 2009
WAM 28-46  20-42 24-45 16-45 30-45  14-46 13-44 28-46  17-42
WAM 38 33 37 31 31 31 37 31
WAM 39 40 39 31 37 33 41 28
20% 18 MMF WAM
WAM
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2010 2009 2010
2009 90
EEETOD 7= FERETO T =L
201048 (USD) 20084 (USD)
g1-1808
i, 09

MNEER
0. 8%

10-308

23, 9%

2010 2009
61-90 2010
EEETO 7= HEETO7 . —0
20104 (AUD) 20094 (AUD)
IHTSE S ZE S
B 7% 4, 9%

10-308 10-308
16, 4% 15. 6%
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2010 2009
90 61-90
2010
EEETOD 7= FERMETOT =L
201048 (EUR) 20094 (EUR)
a1-1808
4. 5%

Wi

108 &35
4,084 0E&#E
B 7%
10-308
13. 59s
10-308
18. 09
2010 2009
61-90 2010
EEETO 7= EBMETO7—0
201048 (CAD) 20094 (CAD)
o G1-808
61-80E 10, 35
2. 494
1088
0. 0%
3-608
37. 6%
10-38
20, T8
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2010 2009
30 2010
EEETo 70— RO —IL
201048 (NZD) 200048 (NZD)
91-1808
1. 1%

10B®&E
3. 8%

10-308
#2496
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MMF MMF
MMF
MMF
MMF
®
MMF
MMF
MMF
MMF
MMF MMF
MMF
MMF MMF
MMF
®
WAM
Uus

2010
Aaa 29.96% 15.30% 5.01% 15.13% 39.07%
Aal 3.31% 19.11% 4.50% 28.11% 17.47%
Aa2 34.82% 34.16% 42.41% 46.95% 18.70%
Aa3 20.73% 26.87% 39.33% 9.80% 20.17%
Al 11.18% 4.56% 4.24% 0.00% 4.60%
A2 0.00% 0.00% 4.50% 0.00% 0.00%
2009
Aaa 39.98% 41.62% 21.79% 15.76% 50.33%
Aal 1.66% 12.90% 6.20% 6.69% 18.53%
Aa2 26.55% 20.00% 35.51% 39.99% 22.21%
Aa3 16.95% 20.81% 26.85% 26.57% 3.77%
Al 14.86% 4.67% 9.65% 10.99% 5.16%
A2 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

2010 12 31 2009 12 31 A2 Aaa

A2 Al
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2010 2009 A2 Aaa
2010 A2
{ERE {EHRE
L—T ¢ — X ORMEAT L—T 4 — X0 RHHET
20104 (USD) 20004 (USD)

Al
1179

Al
14. 8%

Aaa
Aa3 Aad 40. 0%
20 T 16. 994
EE'.'IEE% 1. 7%
2010 2009 A2 Aaa
2010 A2
{ERRE {EFmRE
Li—T 1 —ZX#t DR Li—T 4 —ZH O RS
20104 (AUD} 20094E (AUD}
Al M
4, 6% 4. 7%
LEE]
41. 8%

hal
19. 1%

M. 2%

12. 9%

99/264

Al

Al



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oo00o0o00oo00bDo00noOO(ELD4857)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2010 2009 A2 Aaa
2010 A2
Al Aa2 Aa3
{ERE {EFEE
L—TF s — X OEME L—TF 4« — X EEA
201048 (EUR} 20094 (EUR)
A2 hsa Al
430 4 5% 5.0% Ml 2. 79 .
21.8%
Aad
Aad 26 Bos Aal
39 % 6 2%
Aa?
42, 45
Aa2
35. 59
2010 2009 A2 Aaa
A2 Al
90%
{ERE (B
L—TF s =X OE RS L—T 4 —XH O EHE
20104 (CAD} 2008 (CAD)
Al Al
ops 009 e 11. 0%
Asl
B. 1%
hal
28, 1%
ha?
47.0%

40. 0%
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2010 2009 A2  Aaa
2010 A2 Al
Aa3 Aaa
{ERAE {EFREE
L—F s —Z#OERE I—T ¢ — Xt OB
20104 (NZD) 20094 (NZD)
Al Al
4 6% Al 5 oag

17. 5%

3 %

ha?
22. 1%

Aan
50. 3%

Aal
18. 5%
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Uus

2010

TD 18.90% 17.09% 18.83% 17.74% 18.31%
CD 20.06% 11.71% 29.60% 5.15% 9.34%
CP 57.34% 39.33% 32.29% 26.71% 39.15%
CB 3.70% 31.87% 14.27% 46.90% 33.20%
B 0.00% 0.00% 5.01% 0.00% 0.00%
BA 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 3.50% 0.00%
2009

TD 20.19% 20.36% 19.72% 22.41% 20.25%
CD 16.43% 10.23% 25.46% 24.25% 7.98%
CP 58.65% 52.15% 27.95% 0.00% 56.76%
CB 4.73% 17.26% 0.61% 0.48% 15.01%
B 0.00% 0.00% 26.26% 41.80% 0.00%
BA 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 11.06% 0.00%

2010 12 31 2009 12 31

MMF

CMS
MMF MMF
MMF

MMF

102/264



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oo00o0o00oo00bDo00noOO(ELD4857)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

us

usD AUD EUR CAD NZD

2010
25,746,722 6,337,744 993,626 31,888 5,012,179
- - 3,297 - -
25,746,722 6,337,744 996,923 31,888 5,012,179

2009
12,860,004 27,672,579 889,119 3,130 294,259
- - 3,297 - -
12,860,004 27,672,579 892,416 3,130 294,259

1
us

usD AUD EUR CAD NZD

2010
6,790,354 12,112,239 237,640 172,269 2,859,635
10 531,279 2,872,919 53,141 58,034 1,497,992
76,991 1,017,903 18,011 3,632 333,974
7,398,624 16,003,061 308,792 233,935 4,691,601

2009
9,684,465 12,934,849 443,086 130,551 4,380,507
10 551,804 2,556,034 51,401 21,917 1,659,759
42,034 697,355 7,938 267 310,263

10,278,303 16,188,238 502,425 152,735 6,350,529
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2010 2009
211,543,501,023 194,135,331,684
258,183,431,844 213,805,973,538

(211,195,136,126) (196,397,804,199)
258,531,796,741 211,543,501,023
162,562,895,264 132,515,766,006
237,299,222,524 218,797,582,638

(223,351,153,420) (188,750,453,380)
176,510,964,368 162,562,895,264

17,922,642,718 17,720,757,151
13,216,408,276 11,177,169,879
(11,118,066,208) (10,975,284,312)
20,020,984,786 17,922,642,718
3,285,765,865 3,959,957,398
2,166,776,013 1,597,328,924

(1,510,270,646) (2,271,520,457)

3,942,271,232 3,285,765,865
92,763,474,293 100,820,610,886
64,350,267,715 94,448,935,455
(76,072,270,203) (102,506,072,048)
81,041,471,805 92,763,474,293
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10.
1%

us

USD AUD EUR CAD NZD
2010
11,386 174,465 832 2,220 106,455
23,420 149,180 1,688 2,002 68,930
25,197 160,655 1,818 2,156 74,232
12,566 80,328 909 1,078 37,116
350,193 2,221,513 25,965 31,415 1,014,246
34,656 22,761 2,756 423 12,236
73,861 64,017 19,173 18,740 184,777
531,279 2,872,919 53,141 58,034 1,497,992
2009
8,756 160,119 690 140 105,202
19,413 125,376 1,484 302 78,160
20,885 135,021 1,598 326 84,173
10,415 67,510 799 162 42,086
299,919 1,928,866 22,831 4,649 1,202,469
38,881 23,831 3,036 603 15,985
153,535 115,311 20,963 15,735 131,684
551,804 2,556,034 51,401 21,917 1,659,759
11.
FRS 8
10
10%
2010 2009
us

N | RN IDNDN
N | RN NN
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100

13.

us

14.

1997

15.

MMF

MMF
MMF

739 D

MMF
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2010

2,585,318,062
258,531,796,741
0.01

1,765,109,673
176,510,964,368
0.01

200,209,851
20,020,984,786
0.01

39,422,713
3,942,271,232
0.01

810,414,729
81,041,471,805
0.01

1997

2B

106/264

2009

2,115,435,105
211,543,501,023
0.01

1,625,628,982
162,562,895,264
0.01

179,226,431
17,922,642,718
0.01

32,857,660
3,285,765,865
0.01

927,634,753
92,763,474,293
0.01

739 B

MMF

2008

1,941,353,412
194,135,331,684
0.01

1,325,157,690
132,515,766,006
0.01

177,207,576
17,720,757,151
0.01

39,599,575
3,959,957,398
0.01

1,008,206,118
100,820,610,886
0.01

1997

MMF
MMF

MMF



16.
2010 12 31

924,959,825

2010 12 31

764,243,413
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2011 4 20 us

493,665,444 33,231,388 2,670,185 127,889,637
2011 4 20 Uus

724,103,369 42,221,896 4,970,899 151,301,948
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(3)
us
20102 31
( ) (%)
Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi Austr a3l0i,a0 000.,3050002 YL 8327 E&bidl
Bank of Western Australia 0.289%5YL0D0O03100J084; 282, 163. 29
Mi zuho Corp Bank Sydney 0. 31% Y/7D 01010-,J0a0n07 & 1 995, 362 . 98
Mi zuho Corp Bank Sydney 0. 35% YA40D 02020-,F0e0b03 21980, 956. 55
Rabobank Australia 0.28% YLD 242-8Fe0b0-01,100027, 988, 901. 08
Tasmania Public Finance 0.32% YBD5086; 0860-51,1499, 3160. 21
Tasmania Public Finance 0.30% VY40D 51040-,FOeOb04 01486, 172.56
305,918,590. 83
Bundesi mmobiliengesell schaft MB3,000308%%08BB, 241 M&R21%1
38,971,622.51
ENI Coordination Center SA 0. 299 ,Y0L0D0 ,3010008 an9&a, 4408. 48
ENI Coordination Center SA 0. 312 ,YOLODO ,1080-02é4 b9 90Q, 320. 97
114, 970, 7640. 45
Agence Centrale Des Organi smes 9Xe 000.03,0000 082 P9oO068; F6B-4128
Agence Centrale Des Organi smes 206e, 000.03,0000 04 P920; 686:- 21
Cai sse Des Depos Et Con O0.28% Y4.3D 00080-,FOeOb04 2 1988, 303. 66
Cai sse Des Depos Et Con 0. 31% Y6LOD 01040-,F0e0b05 21978, 832. 32
Cai sse Des Depos Et Con O0.40% VYlL2D 01000-,Ma0r01 11991, 34Q. 46
SNCF 0.29% YLD 12-Jan-11 25,000, 00024,998,390. 97
SNCF 0.33%YLD 28-Feb-11 21,000, 00020, 989, 420. 81
Societe Generale Paris 0.44% YL1D0,0010-0ApOr0o-0191, 989, 3820. 39
285,903, 128. 06
KFW 0.39% YLD 04-Apr-11 95,000, 000m04,907, 498. 67
L-Bank Foerderbank 0.32% YLD 041-3Fe0b0-01,100012, 996, 420.50
L-Bank Foerderbank 0.40% YLD 140Mab00601001006, 918, 0449. 14
214,821, 9684 31
Societe Generale SA (Hong Kong)400.03020% 0OYOLOB9 12997 ah58155
Societe Generale SA (Hong Kong)240,.03080% 0OYOLOP3 108 ™¥Mab44@193
Societe Generale SA (Hong Kong)250,.03090% 0OYOLOR4 1 08 Mab3W196
88,963,343. 44
I ntesa SanPaolo |Ireland Pl c 0. 5665% 0OYOLOD 020306 Ma®211248.51
I ntesa SanPaolo Ireland Pl c 0. 52209 OYOLOD, 030101 Ma©75%1188. 77
84,896, 438. 28
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( ) ( %)

0.31% YLD 12-Jan-11 25,000, 00024, 998, 2760.97
0.31% YLD 14-Jan-11 12,000, 00011,998,960. 46
0.31% YLD 21-Jan-11 23,000, 00022, 996, 636. 89
0.31% YLD 25-Jan-11 55,000, 00054,990,062. 13

114,983, 9444 45

Banque Et Caisse Epargne 0.30%3W0LDO0ONg-0MOBY9 1286, 261. 16
29,986, 261. 16

Bank Ned Gemeenten .34% YLD O ®-1Ma®r0-0,100060, 964, 322. 36
Bank Ne Gemeenten .36% YLD 2&-4Mar0-0,100053, 955, 233.09
Nederl andse Waterchaps 0.33% YLRD, 540-0Ma0r0-020, 486, 85Q2. 79

135,406, 4056. 24

o

o
o

BNZ International Funding Ltd D1290:0 L D010144-, Febbl-, 131943 4 5
Mi t subi shi Corporation Finance 56.,30%,Y0OM5%5200a8an002. 13
Mi t subi shi Corporation Finance 50.,370%,YOD5080Maro000. 93
Mit subishi UFJ TB LDN 0.33% YLIO0Q®-00am-01019, 999, 63a. 77
Mit subishi UFJ TB LDN O0.35% YLD 7040-00Mar0-0036, 978, 794. 43
Standard Chartered 0.35% YLD 14-5Ja@€mM-0,100044, 996, 896. 74
Standard Chartered 0.33% YLD 13%-0Ja€mM-0L100059, 995, 052. 32
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 0.35% YLD 00M-, Ma0r0931000, 00B8. 60
Sumitomo Trust & Banking 0.31%3¥%LDO0108-000DB51000, 000. 35
Sumitomo Trust & Banking 0. 30%8YLMDMONG-00xHLEO1Q00, 008. 10

589,931,722. 82

Schl umberger Finance BV 0.31% YLD0OQ@-0G@G®-61,1999, 398 .27
Schl umberger Finance BV 0.31% Y2D 01080-,10a0mM411994, 941. 62
Schl umberger Finance BV 0.33% ¥YI8D 00®0-,0a0M271995, 898. 08

76, 990,232.97

171,016 0.01
171,016 0.01

2,081,915, 80653
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20102 31

( ) (%)
Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi Austra32i,a0 040 ,9000083 Y| ®4008B&8b8Q1
Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi Austr abl2,a0 040 ,9020005 Y| B5097™Mar 921
Bank of Western Australia 4.93%8Yy,LOD0O0L,400Ma7; 38, 786. 57
Bank of Western Australia 4.949%5Y,L0D0O0L,400M84; 6T2, 651. 96
Barclays Bank Australia 4.88% Y8L4D 01000-,Mar08 21268, 788. 72
Commonweal th Bank of Australia 3,723%, ¥0D 32,17-3J2a,n1-5180 . 2 1

Deut sche Australia Ltd 4.78% YL6D,1020-0J,a0n0-082, 937, 038. 40
Deut sche Australia Ltd 4.70% YLD’ ,2000-0J,a0n0-00 6, 964, 910. 96
GE Capital Australia Funding 5.1755% 7v4AL,D001085)JamA51100. 87
GE Capital Australia Funding 7.50%08L DO0O®Q56-,J0aln4-,1114 30. 3 4
GE Capital Australia Funding 8. Q00%8%|L DO0B®Q51,J1a8n3-,1510 70. 0 7
GE Capital Australia Funding 8.2500,% 1Y6L,D0 028 O FgB8 1507. 18
Mi zuho Corp Bank Sydney 4. 87 % Y5L.5D 00070-,FOeOb054 1750, 103. 10
National Australia Bank 4. 73% YLD 00070-,J0a0n0L @ 1 995, 71Q. 62
National Australia Bank 4. 85% Y5.0D 01020-,J0a0n04 21946, 5502. 83
Nestle Australia 4.72% YLD 14- Jla6n,-01010, 000L5, 979, 23Q2. 91
Nestle Australia 4.93% YLD 18- F32b,-01010, 00031, 805, 448. 80
Rabobank Australia 4.90% YLD 1041Fe0b0-01,10004 0, 795, 840Q2. 31
Rabobank Australia 4.97% YLD 1537Ma0r0-01,100036, 646, 822. 038
Sumitomo Mitsui Finance Australbida 040.09,000 0BD704; 888B:- 0%
Sumitomo Mitsui Finance Austral3iOa 05000100 X 8 P762; Mad: 62
Toyota Finance Australia 5.01% 1Y8,,D0 0106,-0FOcOb 7 1 893, 623. 01
Toyota Finance Australia 4. 96 % 6YOL,D00202,-O0Ma0b 91271, 128. 36
Westpac Banking 4.83% YLD 07-Ja2n5,101000, 0004, 990, 063. 42
West pac Banking 5.05% YLD 18- Ma58,10100, 00057, 413, 558. 25

837,105,148. 43
Agence Centrale Des Organi smes 4Dbe, 040.09, 7000 ¥4 P603; MR- %3
Agence Centrale Des Organi smes 1D7e, 040.09,20%9 0Y&E6 P8bB6B; MaB: 2 &
BNP Paribas Ltd 4.89% YLD 14- Fe50,101000, 00049, 725, 052. 82
BNP Paribas Ltd 4.91% YLD 16- Fe3b5,101000, 00034, 797, 27%9. 97
Cai sse Des Depos Et Con 4. 92% Y4L0D, 02020-, Ma0r03 21584, 232. 24

185,606, 0I8. 52
L-Bank Foerderbank 4.88% YLD 1050F~e0b0-01,100049, 752, 312. 82
L-Bank Foerderbank 6.25% YLD 141-7Fe300-01,100017, 321, 160. 938
L-Bank Foerderbank 4.94% YLD 211-7Ma0r0-01,100016, 824, 87Q@. 95
NRW Bank 4.87% YLD 08-Feb-11 67,000,000606,686,673. 78
NRW Bank 4.88% YLD 10-Feb-11 12,000,00001, 940, 556. 68

162,525,571 21

Societe Generale SA (Hong Kong)804,.00040% OYOLOD9 0878 aB838153
79,978, 338.53
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( ) ( %)

I ntesa SanPaol o Bank | rel and Pl4cl 40.0704,%9 004 D, 83 0F6MHZ131
I ntesa SanPaol o Bank | reland P132,40.0006,% OYOB D, 6 S5 Mab 8180
72,545, 778. 11

Rabobank Australia 5.5% YLD 05-2a8831000 2,383, 0140. 114
Rabobank Nederland 5.63% YLD 013Ma8B861000 3,937, 1960. 22
6,320, 210. 36
European I nvest Bank 5.38% YLD 24008no00 2,000, 5000. 11
2,000,5000. 11

Standard Chartered 4.80% YLD 1134,a0n0-01,100033, 968, 631. 92
Standard Chartered 4. 75% YLD 18253,a0n0-01,10002 4, 954, 3723. 41
Standard Chartered 4. 75% YLD 2022),a0n0-01,10002 1, 954, 112. 24
Sumitomo Trust & Banking 4. 77 % 3Y6L,D0 0102,-0J0a0B 6 1 @00, 00Q. 04

116,877, 1166 61

Nestle Holdings 7.25% YLD 31-Jaf@; 210,000 2,914,3350. 17
Toyota Motor Credit 6.38% YLD 18;246; 000 1, 213,5360. 07
4,127,8710. 2
4,644,508 .26

4,644,508 .26

1,471,731,0863238
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20102 31

( ) ( %)

Toyota Finance Australia 0.84% %LDO070B6b4,19194, 9082. 49
4,994,908 .49

Bel gium T-Bill 0.83% YLD 14-Apr91000, 000 8,979, 3054. 49
ENI Coordination Center SA 0. 7 01% ,YOLODO ,1080-0J9a,n9-9171, 28 34 . 99
18,976, 588. 48

HSBC France 0.72% YLD 14-Mar-1110, 000, 0009, 986, 3204.99
Societe Generale Paris 0.82% YLB,600MA0018]1, 489, 1804. 24
18,475,500. 23

Toyota Leasing GMBH 0.82% YLD 08;P68b; 000 4, 996,684 .50
4,996,684 .50

I ntesa SanPaolo I reland Plc 0.98%090D0D28-5Fe909-11,16 072. 99
5,991,6072. 99

ntesa SanPaolo SPA 3.50% YLD 28;B6b;000 3,009,5441.50
ltaly T-Bill 1.04% YLD 15-Feb-1110, 000, 0009, 987, 9604. 99
12,997,5086. 49

0.79% YLD 28-Feb-11 10,000, 0009, 987, 9564. 99
Sumitomo Corp Capital Europe 0.93%0O%LDOO 38,Ma86-,1514 64 . 49
0.78% YLD 17-Feb-11 5,000,0005,000,0002.50

0.65% YLD 30-Mar-11 5,000,000 5,000, 0002. 50

28, 974,50124. 48

Rabobank Nederland 0.66% YLD 141-0J,a0n0-01,10009, 998, 1694. 99
9,998,16%. 99

Nordea Bank Ab 0.67% YLD 10-Febl-01,1000, 0009, 993, 1214. 99
9,993,1214.99

Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Ltd, 00?1 @0W%¥LD9391,-934a7inO01%0
Barclays Bank 0.85% YLD 10- Mar -1101, 000, 0009, 984, 6854. 99

|
Mi tsubishi UFJ TB LDN 0.68% YLD8Q0DO0anoO0D17, 999, 5484.00
Mi zuho Corp Bank 0.90% YLD 25- Ma0r,-01010, 00010, 000, 008. 99
Standard Chartered 4.88 YLD 11-Ma¥4o001000 1,409,1460. 70
Sumitomo Trust & Banking 0.80% ¥LD0O0O70B6b4,1000, 0002. 00
Sumitomo Trust & Banking 0.90% ¥LDO0O0O790B6b-,10100, 0002. 50

39,393, 32169. 638

Schl umberger Finance BV 0.78% YIZDODbB,; 080-61,1996, 8213. 49
6,996, 8213. 49

167,560 0. 08
167,560 0. 08

161,956, 280. 89
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Bank of Montreal 4.69% YLD 31-J&8poe00, 000 3,007,5797.63
Bank of Nova Scotia 4.58% YLD 183;B6b;000 3,011, 3237.64
Canadian | mperi al Bank 4.40% YLP,8B30MAa0O0O121, 865, 9717. 27
Mani toba (Province of) 5.85% YBPOB8bH; 080-31,1058, 0067 . 76
Nati onal Bank of Canada 1.10% YLD800O;B6D-11,1798, 2944 .56
Nati onal Bank of Canada 1.10% YLD2@28;B6b-11,1198, 1773. 04

14,939, 35307.90

Agence Centrale Des Organi smes BeO0DO]1O0%O0 Y2L, D 9068, -8F0elb - & Q
Tot al Capital SA 4% YLD 25-Feb-11868,0001,875,1114. 76
4,871,9122. 36

L-Bank Foerderbank 1.20% YLD 183J)J8001000
NRW Bank 1.19% YLD 14-Jan-11 3,000,000

N

998, 6047.60
999, 0117. 61
5,997,61%5. 21

N

Intesa SanPaolo SPA 1.15% YLD 28;080; 000

[EY

998,4715. 07
1,998,471.07

BNZ I nternational Funding Ltd 1216%0YD0DDDO 124,-4Madr,-714146 . 3 3
Mi t subi shi UFJ TB LDN 1.13% YLD22p0ManoO011l, 995, 1805. 06
4,489,9241. 39

299,487 0.76
299,487 0.76

32,596, 75892. 69
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Depos Et Con 3. 24% Y36D 02080, F0e0b03 %
erale Paris 3.20% YL3B,00800Fe0b0-03 7,

=0

LD 14-Jan-11 2,231,000 2,233,418 .28
LD 11-Mar-11 40,000,0009,771,394.91
LD 18- Mar-11 30,000, 00029,807,509. 68
derbank 3.31% YLD 2830Fe0b0-01,100029, 850, 523. 638
aftliche Rentenbank 235,1040% ,YOL0OD2B65006anoaQa@. 08
28% YLD 16-Feb-11 36, 000,0005,863,388. 42
162,526, 223068.05

I ntesa SanPaolo I reland Pl c 3. 3328% OYOLOD, 020803 Mav7 141949. 65
37,714,949.65

meenten 3.19% YLD 2636J,a0n0-01,100035, 933, 5524. 43
d 3.15% YLD 06-Jan- 1315, 000, 00034, 996, 947. 32
d 6.50% YLD 18-Jan-12,220,0002,222,2850.28
73,152,789.03
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ken AS 2.70% YLD 15-3Ma,r0-0101, 00030, 955, 438. 82
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al Bank for Rec & Def2, 60025 %0920 52049-, F0e6b30 1 3 1
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Corporation Finance 337.,2070% ,YOLOD0O3 2830 08no0Qa. 57
t sui Banking 3.25% Y3L7D 01080-,F0e0b037 1000, 008. 57
74,000, 000. 14

ctric Capital Corp 715Q%4YDDO 218,-2He0b,-915120 . 1 6
r Credit 3.25% YLD 0278 ,F0e0b0-,1010027, 983, 6438. 45
r Credit 4.15% YLD 29;Ap0; 000 9,005,9631.11
38,230,559, 72

1,826,6860. 23

1,826,6860. 23

661,821,4081.67
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF

U.S. DOLLAR PORTFOLIO

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
As at 31% December 2010
2010 2009

Note usD usD
Assets
Cash including fixed deposits 6 485,054,488 426,556,957
Debtors 7 25,746,722 12,860,004
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2,4,5 2,081,915,476 1,686,296,447
Total Assets 2,592,716,686 2,125,713,408
Liabilities
Creditors - Due within one year 8 7,398,624 10,278,303
Liabilities (excluding Net Assets attributable
to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units) 7,398,624 10,278,303
Net Assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units 2,585,318,062 2,115,435,105

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.

On behalf of Daiwa Europe Fund Managers Ireland Limited
Brian Guyett Peter Callaghan

Date: 20" April 2011
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF

U.S. DOLLAR PORTFOLIO

Statement of Operations
For the year ended 31 December 2010
2010 2009

Note usD usD
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss 2,3 7,736,402 12,314,905
Total net income 7,736,402 12,314,905
Expenses
Investment Manager fees 10 110,909 100,617
Administration fees 82,257 74,625
Sub-Custodian fees 10 88,496 80,284
Trustee fees 10 44,132 40,037
Distributors’ fees and Agent Security fees 10 1,268,736 1,152,902
Audit fees 28,722 36,115
Other expenses 737,150 807,590
Total expenses 2,360,402 2,292,170
Finance costs
Distributions 12 (5,376,000) (10,022,735)

Change in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units after distributions - -

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations.
There are no recognised gains and losses other than those shown in the Statement of Operations.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF

U.S. DOLLAR PORTFOLIO

Statement of Changes in Net Assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units

For the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
usD UsD
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units at 1%* January 2,115,435,105 1,941,353,412
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Units issued 2,581,834,319 2,138,059,735
Payments for Redeemable Participating Units redeemed (2,111,951,362) (1,963,978,042)
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units at 31> December 2,585,318,062 2,115,435,105

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF

AUSTRALIAN DOLLAR PORTFOLIO

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
As at 31% December 2010
2010 2009

Note AUD AUD
Assets
Cash including fixed deposits 6 303,043,918 328,540,136
Debtors 7 6,337,744 27,672,579
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2,45 1,471,731,072 1,285,604,505
Total Assets 1,781,112,734 1,641,817,220
Liabilities
Creditors - Due within one year 8 16,003,061 16,188,238
Liabilities (excluding Net Assets attributable
to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units) 16,003,061 16,188,238
Net Assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units 1,765,109,673 1,625,628,982

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.

On behalf of Daiwa Europe Fund Managers Ireland Limited
Brian Guyett Peter Callaghan

Date: 20" April 2011
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF

AUSTRALIAN DOLLAR PORTFOLIO

Statement of Operations
For the year ended 31 December 2010
2010 2009

Note AUD AUD
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss 2,3 78,292,630 52,812,283
Total net income 78,292,630 52,812,283
Expenses
Investment Manager fees 10 2,025,527 1,848,786
Administration fees 561,144 503,356
Sub-Custodian fees 10 604,308 542,076
Trustee fees 10 302,155 271,038
Distributors’ fees and Agent Security fees 10 8,627,638 7,744,384
Audit fees 23,811 28,527
Other expenses 585,874 613,063
Total expenses 12,730,457 11,551,230
Finance costs
Distributions 12 (65,562,173) (41,261,053)

Change in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units after distributions - -

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations.
There are no recognised gains and losses other than those shown in the Statement of Operations.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF

AUSTRALIAN DOLLAR PORTFOLIO

Statement of Changes in Net Assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units

For the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
AUD AUD
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units at 1 January 1,625,628,982 1,325,157,690
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Units issued 2,372,992,225 2,187,975,826
Payments for Redeemable Participating Units redeemed (2,233,511,534) (1,887,504,534)
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units at 31% December 1,765,109,673 1,625,628,982

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF

EURO PORTFOLIO

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
As at 31% December 2010
2010 2009

Note EUR EUR
Assets
Cash including fixed deposits 6 37,565,430 35,260,968
Debtors 7 996,923 892,416
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2,45 161,956,290 143,575,472
Total Assets 200,518,643 179,728,856
Liabilities
Creditors - Due within one year 8 308,792 502,425
Liabilities (excluding Net Assets attributable
to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units) 308,792 502,425
Net Assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units 200,209,851 179,226,431

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.

On behalf of Daiwa Europe Fund Managers Ireland Limited
Brian Guyett Peter Callaghan

Date: 20" April 2011
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF

EURO PORTFOLIO

Statement of Operations
For the year ended 31 December 2010
2010 2009

Note EUR EUR
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss 2,3 951,700 1,704,008
Total net income 951,700 1,704,008
Expenses
Investment Manager fees 10 8,805 147,501
Administration fees 6,352 35,021
Sub-Custodian fees 10 6,840 39,257
Trustee fees 10 3,420 18,863
Distributors’ fees and Agent Security fees 10 97,713 535,491
Audit fees 2,308 2,592
Other expenses 84,574 68,542
Total expenses 210,012 847,267
Finance costs
Distributions 12 (741,688) (856,741)

Change in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units after distributions - -

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations.
There are no recognised gains and losses other than those shown in the Statement of Operations.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF

EURO PORTFOLIO

Statement of Changes in Net Assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units

For the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
EUR EUR
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units at e January 179,226,431 177,207,576
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Units issued 132,164,082 111,771,698
Payments for Redeemable Participating Units redeemed (111,180,662) (109,752,843)
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units at 31% December 200,209,851 179,226,431

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF

CANADIAN DOLLAR PORTFOLIO

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
As at 31% December 2010
2010 2009

Note CAD CAD
Assets
Cash including fixed deposits 6 7,028,001 7,397,561
Debtors 7 31,888 3,130
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2,45 32,596,759 25,609,704
Total Assets 39,656,648 33,010,395
Liabilities
Creditors - Due within one year 8 233,935 152,735
Liabilities (excluding Net Assets attributable
to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units) 233,935 152,735
Net Assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units 39,422,713 32,857,660

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.

On behalf of Daiwa Europe Fund Managers Ireland Limited
Brian Guyett Peter Callaghan

Date: 20" April 2011
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF

CANADIAN DOLLAR PORTFOLIO

Statement of Operations
For the year ended 31 December 2010
2010 2009

Note CAD CAD
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss 2,3 245,510 207,744
Total net income 245,510 207,744
Expenses
Investment Manager fees 10 9,284 10,780
Administration fees 3,589 3,116
Sub-Custodian fees 10 3,865 3,744
Trustee fees 10 1,933 1,872
Distributors’ fees and Agent Security fees 10 55,874 53,157
Audit fees 201 (631)
Other expenses 30,279 17,936
Total expenses 105,025 89,974
Finance costs
Distributions 12 (140,485) (117,770)

Change in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units after distributions - -

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations.
There are no recognised gains and losses other than those shown in the Statement of Operations.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF

CANADIAN DOLLAR PORTFOLIO

Statement of Changes in Net Assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units

For the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
CAD CAD
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units at e January 32,857,660 39,599,575
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Units issued 21,667,760 15,973,290
Payments for Redeemable Participating Units redeemed (15,102,707) (22,715,205)
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units at 31% December 39,422,713 32,857,660

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF

NEW ZEALAND DOLLAR PORTFOLIO

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
As at 31 December 2010
2010 2009

Note NzD NzD
Assets
Cash including fixed deposits 6 148,272,747 189,018,799
Debtors 7 5,012,179 294,259
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2,45 661,821,404 744,672,224
Total Assets 815,106,330 933,985,282
Liabilities
Creditors - Due within one year 8 4,691,601 6,350,529
Liabilities (excluding Net Assets attributable
to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units) 4,691,601 6,350,529
Net Assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units 810,414,729 927,634,753

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.

On behalf of Daiwa Europe Fund Managers Ireland Limited
Brian Guyett Peter Callaghan

Date: 20th April 2011
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF

NEW ZEALAND DOLLAR PORTFOLIO

Statement of Operations
For the year ended 31 December 2010
2010 2009

Note NzD NzD
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss 2,3 25,696,947 33,249,654
Total net income 25,696,947 33,249,654
Expenses
Investment Manager fees 10 1,151,652 1,340,023
Administration fees 276,787 338,008
Sub-Custodian fees 10 298,078 364,008
Trustee fees 10 149,039 182,004
Distributors’ fees and Agent Security fees 10 4,264,220 5,200,118
Audit fees 8,964 21,663
Other expenses 377,782 536,287
Total expenses 6,526,522 7,982,111
Finance costs
Distributions 12 (19,170,425) (25,267,543)

Change in Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units after distributions - -

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations.
There are no recognised gains and losses other than those shown in the Statement of Operations.

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF

NEW ZEALAND DOLLAR PORTFOLIO

Statement of Changes in Net Assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units

For the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
NZD NzZD
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units at e January 927,634,753 1,008,206,118
Proceeds from Redeemable Participating Units issued 643,502,678 944,489,355
Payments for Redeemable Participating Units redeemed (760,722,702) (1,025,060,720)
Net Assets attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units at 31% December 810,414,729 927,634,753

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF

Notes to the Financial Statements
31St December 2010

GENERAL INFORMATION
Daiwa Gaika MMF (the “Fund”) was constituted as an Irish domiciled unit trust, by a trust deed dated 5th July 1996 as

amended by supplemental dated 17th July 1996. The Fund is an umbrella unit trust organised under and complying with
the Unit Trusts Act, 1990.

The Fund is an umbrella fund in which different classes of Units may be issued from time to time. Each class represents
interests in a fund comprising a separate and distinct portfolio of investments. The classes of Units in issue were U.S.
Dollar Portfolio (“USD Portfolio™), Australian Dollar Portfolio (“AUD Portfolio™), Euro Portfolio (“EUR Portfolio”),
Canadian Dollar Portfolio (“CAD Portfolio”) and New Zealand Dollar Portfolio (“NzZD Portfolio™).

Effective 23rGI June 2006 the duration of the Fund was extended for an indefinite period.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies adopted by the Fund are as follows:

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, as adjusted for the
revaluation of financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss and accounting standards generally accepted
in Ireland and Irish Statute comprising the Unit Trusts Act, 1990. Accounting Standards generally accepted in Ireland, in
preparing financial statements giving a true and fair view, are those published by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
Ireland and issued by the Accounting Standards Board (“ASB”). The Fund classifies its investments in debt securities as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. These financial assets are classified as held for trading or designated by
the Board of Directors at fair value through profit or loss at inception.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Irish GAAP requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Fund’s accounting
policies. The estimates and associated judgements are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Investments

Investments consist of short term debt obligations. Short term debt obligations with a remaining maturity of less than one
year are valued at fair value using an amortised cost technique (i.e. at their acquisition cost as adjusted for the
amortisation of premium or accretion of discount) which approximates fair value. The Manager continuously reviews the
amortised cost method to ensure that investments are stated at their fair market value.

Cash and other liquid assets are valued at their face value with coupon interest receivable accrued, where applicable, to
the end of the relevant day.

Recognition/derecognition

Regular-way purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date - the date on which the Fund commits to
purchase or sell the investment. Investments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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Foreign Currencies
Assets and Liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are measured using the currency (the functional currency) of the
primary economic environment, in which the individual portfolio operates. This is U.S. Dollar (“USD”), Australian Dollar
(“AUD™), Euro (“EUR™), Canadian Dollar (“CAD”) and New Zealand Dollar (“NZD™). Assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into USD, AUD, EUR, CAD and NZD at the exchange rates ruling at the
year end date.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Fund’s Unitholders are from Japan, with the subscriptions and redemptions of the Redeemable Participating units
denominated in USD, AUD, EUR, CAD, and NZD. The primary activity of the Fund is to preserve principal value and
maintain a high degree of liquidity while providing current income by investing in high quality fixed and floating rate
debt instruments traded on a Recognised Exchange listed in the Trust Deed. The performance of USD Portfolio, AUD
Portfolio, EUR Portfolio, CAD Portfolio and NZD Portfolio are measured and reported to the Unitholders in USD, AUD,
EUR, CAD and NZD respectively. The Trustee considers each currency as the currency that most faithfully represents the
economic effects of the underlying transactions, events and conditions of their respective funds. The financial statements
of USD Portfolio, AUD Portfolio, EUR Portfolio, CAD Portfolio and NZD Portfolio are presented in USD, AUD, EUR,
CAD and NZD which are the classes’ functional and presentation currencies respectively.

Income
Interest income is accounted for on an effective yield basis. Discounts and premiums on securities are amortised and
accreted on the effective yield basis over the life of the respective securities.

Expenses
Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Redeemable Participating Units

Redeemable Participating Units are redeemable at the Unitholders option and are classified as financial liabilities. The
Net Asset Value per Unit is maintained at USD0.01 / AUDO0.01 / EURO0.01 / CADO0.01 and NZD0.01 through the
declaration of distributions.

The Redeemable Participating Units can be put back into the Fund at any time for cash equal to a proportional share of the
Fund’s Net Asset Value. The Redeemable Participating Unit is carried at the redemption amount which is payable at the
year end date if the Unitholder expressed the right to put the Unit back in the Fund.

Reporting Financial Performance

The format and certain wording of the financial statements have been adopted from those contained in FRS 3 “Reporting
Financial Performance” so that, in the opinion of the Manager, they more appropriately reflect the nature of the Fund’s
business as an investment fund.

Cash Flow Statement

The Fund has availed of the exemption available to open ended investment funds under FRS 1 not to prepare a cash flow
statement.
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NET GAIN ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

usD AUD EUR CAD NzD
Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio
usD AUD EUR CAD NzD
2010
Held for trading:
- Interest income 2,423,033 23,128,232 371,849 352,025 11,495,905
- Accretion of acquisition discount 5,324,069 56,190,729 583,340 112,606 15,907,264
- Amortisation of acquisition premium (10,700)  (1,026,331) (3,489) (219,121) (1,706,222)
7,736,402 78,292,630 951,700 245510 25,696,947
2009
Held for trading:
- Interest income 4,744,712 24,117,696 906,356 412,506 19,010,212
- Accretion of acquisition discount 7,708,411 30,117,352 804,696 53,807 16,387,102
- Amortisation of acquisition premium (138,218)  (1,422,765) (7,044) (258,569)  (2,147,660)

12,314,905 52,812,283 1,704,008 207,744 33,249,654

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The table below shows financial instruments recognised at fair value, analysed between those whose fair value is based
on:
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);
those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) (Level 2); and
those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) (Level
3).

USD Portfolio AUD Portfolio EUR Portfolio CAD Portfolio NZD Portfolio
Level 2 Level 2 Level 2 Level 2 Level 2
usD AUD EUR CAD NzZD
2010
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Debt Obligations 2,081,744,460 1,467,086,564 161,788,730 32,297,272 659,994,718
2,081,744,460 1,467,086,564 161,788,730 32,297,272 659,994,718

2009

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

Debt Obligations 1,686,118,078 1,281,490,793 143,506,139 25,597,952 741,511,390
1,686,118,078 1,281,490,793 143,506,139 25,597,952 741,511,390

The figures above are not inclusive of interest and differ to what is disclosed in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities.
All securities held by the classes are classified as Level 2.

When the Fund has assets and liabilities with offsetting market risks, it uses mid-market prices as a basis for establishing
fair values for the offsetting risk positions and applies the bid or ask price to the net open position as appropriate.
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INVESTMENTS
The main risks arising from the Fund’s financial instruments can be summarised as follows:

Market Risk

Market risk arises from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held. It represents the potential loss the
Fund might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price movements. Market risk comprises three types of
risk: price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk.

Price Risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the Fund’s financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices
caused by factors other than interest rates or foreign currency movement. The financial instruments of the Fund are not
exposed directly to price risk.

Currency Risk
Currency risk represents the potential losses that the Fund might suffer due to adverse movements in non-functional

currency exposures. All the investments of each Class are denominated in the functional currency of the relevant Class
with the effect that the Statement of Assets and Liabilities and Statement of Operations will not be significantly affected
by currency movements.

Interest Rate Risk
The risk is defined as the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The risk arises on financial instruments whose fair value is affected by changes in interest rates.

The table overleaf summarises the Fund’s exposure to interest rate risks at the end of the year. It includes the Fund’s
assets and trading liabilities at fair value, categorized by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates:
USD Portfolio

2010
Less than 1 1-3 Over Non-interest
Month Months 3 Months bearing Total
usbD uUsD usD uUsD usD

Assets
Cash including fixed deposits 696 485,053,792 - - 485,054,488
Debtors - - - 25,746,722 25,746,722
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 809,589,609 1,167,428,991 104,896,876 - 2,081,915,476
Total assets 809,590,305 1,652,482,783 104,896,876 25,746,722 2,592,716,686
Liabilities
Creditors - due within one year - - - 7,398,624 7,398,624
Total liabilities - - - 7,398,624 7,398,624
Total Interest Sensitivity Gap 809,590,305 1,652,482,783 104,896,876 N/A N/A
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USD Portfolio
2009
Less than 1 1-3 Over Non-interest
Month Months 3 Months bearing Total
uUsD UsD uUsD uUSD UsD
Assets
Cash including fixed deposits 457 426,556,500 - - 426,556,957
Debtors - - - 12,860,004 12,860,004
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 436,635,141  1,199,675,428 49,985,878 - 1,686,296,447
Total assets 436,635,598 1,626,231,928 49,985,878 12,860,004 2,125,713,408
Liabilities
Creditors - due within one year - - - 10,278,303 10,278,303
Total liabilities - - - 10,278,303 10,278,303
Total Interest Sensitivity Gap 436,635,598 1,626,231,928 49,985,878 N/A N/A
AUD Portfolio
2010
Less than 1 1-3 Over Non-interest
Month Months 3 Months bearing Total
AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD
Assets
Cash including fixed deposits 864 303,043,054 - - 303,043,918
Debtors - - - 6,337,744 6,337,744
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 415,029,762  1,056,701,310 - - 1,471,731,072
Total assets 415,030,626  1,359,744,364 - 6,337,744 1,781,112,734
Liabilities
Creditors - due within one year - - - 16,003,061 16,003,061
Total liabilities - - - 16,003,061 16,003,061
Total Interest Sensitivity Gap 415,030,626  1,359,744,364 - N/A N/A
AUD Portfolio
2009
Less than 1 1-3 Over Non-interest
Month Months 3 Months bearing Total
AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD
Assets
Cash including fixed deposits 596 328,539,540 - - 328,540,136
Debtors - - - 27,672,579 27,672,579
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 331,820,951 953,783,554 - - 1,285,604,505
Total assets 331,821,547 1,282,323,094 - 27,672,579  1,641,817,220
Liabilities
Creditors - due within one year - - - 16,188,238 16,188,238
Total liabilities - - - 16,188,238 16,188,238
Total Interest Sensitivity Gap 331,821,547  1,282,323,094 - N/A N/A
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EUR Portfolio
2010
Less than 1 1-3 Over Non-interest
Month Months 3 Months bearing Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
Assets
Cash including fixed deposits 702 37,564,728 - - 37,565,430
Debtors - - - 996,923 996,923
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 36,159,328 116,817,657 8,979,305 - 161,956,290
Total assets 36,160,030 154,382,385 8,979,305 996,923 200,518,643
Liabilities
Creditors - due within one year - - - 308,792 308,792
Total liabilities - - - 308,792 308,792
Total Interest Sensitivity Gap 36,160,030 154,382,385 8,979,305 N/A N/A
EUR Portfolio
2009
Less than 1 1-3 Over Non-interest
Month Months 3 Months bearing Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
Assets
Cash including fixed deposits 468 35,260,500 - - 35,260,968
Debtors - - - 892,416 892,416
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 49,563,891 94,011,581 - - 143,575,472
Total assets 49,564,359 129,272,081 - 892,416 179,728,856
Liabilities
Creditors - due within one year - - - 502,425 502,425
Total liabilities - - - 502,425 502,425
Total Interest Sensitivity Gap 49,564,359 129,272,081 - N/A N/A
CAD Portfolio
2010
Less than 1 1-3 Over Non-interest
Month Months 3 Months bearing Total
CAD CAD CAD CAD CAD
Assets
Cash including fixed deposits 445 7,027,556 - - 7,028,001
Debtors - - - 31,888 31,888
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 14,361,158 18,235,601 - - 32,596,759
Total assets 14,361,603 25,263,157 - 31,888 39,656,648
Liabilities
Creditors - due within one year - - - 233,935 233,935
Total liabilities - - - 233,935 233,935
Total Interest Sensitivity Gap 14,361,603 25,263,157 - N/A N/A
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CAD Portfolio
2009
Less than 1 1-3 Over Non-interest
Month Months 3 Months bearing Total
CAD CAD CAD CAD CAD
Assets
Cash including fixed deposits 470 7,397,091 - - 7,397,561
Debtors - - - 3,130 3,130
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 9,813,705 15,795,999 - - 25,609,704
Total assets 9,814,175 23,193,090 - 3,130 33,010,395
Liabilities
Creditors - due within one year - - - 152,735 152,735
Total liabilities - - - 152,735 152,735
Total Interest Sensitivity Gap 9,814,175 23,193,090 - N/A N/A
NZD Portfolio
2010
Less than 1 1-3 Over Non-interest
Month Months 3 Months bearing Total
NzD NzD NzD NzD NzD
Assets
Cash including fixed deposits 280 148,272,467 - - 148,272,747
Debtors - - - 5,012,179 5,012,179
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 197,871,536 454,943,905 9,005,963 - 661,821,404
Total assets 197,871,816 603,216,372 9,005,963 5,012,179 815,106,330
Liabilities
Creditors - due within one year - - - 4,691,601 4,691,601
Total liabilities - - - 4,691,601 4,691,601
Total Interest Sensitivity Gap 197,871,816 603,216,372 9,005,963 N/A N/A
NZD Portfolio
2009
Less than 1 1-3 Over Non-interest
Month Months 3 Months bearing Total
NzZD NzD NzZD NZD NZD
Assets
Cash including fixed deposits 564 189,018,235 - - 189,018,799
Debtors - - - 294,259 294,259
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 246,137,627 498,534,597 - - 744,672,224
Total assets 246,138,191 687,552,832 - 294,259 933,985,282
Liabilities
Creditors - due within one year - - - 6,350,529 6,350,529
Total liabilities - - - 6,350,529 6,350,529
Total Interest Sensitivity Gap 246,138,191 687,552,832 - N/A N/A
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The Benchmark rate for determining interest receipts for the floating rate investments is based on LIBOR for the USD
Portfolio, BBSW for the AUD Portfolio, EURIBOR for the EUR Portfolio, CDOR for the CAD Portfolio and NZ Bank
Bill Rate for the NZD Portfolio plus or minus specified basis points.

A weekly mark to market evaluation is carried out by the Manager. Separately from this test, the Investment Manager
independently runs at least weekly mark to market evaluations; this includes a stress test worked out against a yield curve
change (currently the Investment Manager sets a 25 bps and a 50 bps parallel interest curve rise).

Impact of interest rate fluctuation (yield curve parallel shift)

2010
+50bps +25bps +6.25bps -10bps
usD -0.05% -0.02% -0.01% 0.01%
EUR -0.05% -0.03% -0.01% 0.01%
AUD -0.05% -0.02% -0.01% 0.01%
CAD -0.04% -0.02% -0.01% 0.01%
NZD -0.06% -0.03% -0.01% 0.01%
(+6.25bps provides pricing based on Bid price)
2009
+50bps +25bps +6.25bps -10bps
usD -0.05% -0.02% 0.01% 0.01%
EUR -0.04% -0.02% 0.00% 0.01%
AUD -0.05% -0.03% -0.01% 0.01%
CAD -0.03% -0.02% 0.00% 0.01%
NZD -0.06% -0.03% -0.01% 0.01%
(+6.25bps provides pricing based on Bid price)
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk represents the possibility that the Fund may not be able to rapidly adjust the size of its investment position
in times of high volatility and financial stress at a reasonable price.

Funds are invested in assets which are realisable, and overnight cash balances of around 5% are normally retained, which
are increased for known outflows and during market disruption. The Investment Manager and the Investment Adviser
contact distributors on a frequent basis in order to obtain information on potential sizable redemptions. In times of market
disruption realising assets may become more difficult, when this is observed it is monitored, and where necessary
maturities are shortened and overnight cash is increased.

The liquidity risk tables below analyse the Fund’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the year end date to the contractual maturity date.

usD AUD EUR CAD NzZD
2010 Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio
Cash 18.90% 17.09% 18.83% 17.74% 18.31%
Less than 10 days <10 0.78% 6.68% 4.01% 0.00% 7.41%
10-30 days <=30 23.94% 16.40% 13.53% 28.10% 16.88%
31-60 days <=60 28.64% 29.74% 32.11% 35.50% 36.97%
61-90 days <=90 22.87% 30.09% 27.02% 18.67% 19.31%
91-180 days <=180 4.87% 0.00% 4.50% 0.00% 1.12%
181-365 days 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
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2009
Cash 20.19% 20.36% 19.72% 22.41% 20.25%
Less than 10 days <10 0.95% 4.89% 8.68% 0.00% 3.77%
10-30 days <=30 19.72% 15.61% 19.01% 29.73% 22.39%
31-60 days <=60 29.71% 36.11% 30.75% 37.56% 24.41%
61-90 days <=90 29.43% 23.03% 21.84% 10.30% 29.18%
91-180 days <=180 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
181-365 days 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Liquidity Average Table

USD Portfolio  AUD Portfolio EUR Portfolio  CAD Portfolio  NZD Portfolio

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
WAM Range (days) 28-46  20-42 24-45 16-45 3045 14-46 23-45 13-44 28-46 17-42
WAM Average (days) 38 33 37 31 38 31 36 31 37 31
WAM at year end (days) 39 40 39 31 44 37 36 33 41 28

The duration of most of the portfolios were increased during the year as market liquidity continued to improve. The cash
target was reduced from around 20% to around 18% and more long duration paper was purchased resulting in the average
WAM (weighted average maturity) increasing and the WAM at year end also increased for most of the funds, this can be
evidenced by the change in the tables above.

USD Liquidity Profile Pie Chart

The pie chart below shows by period buckets the maturity of the holdings at the end of 2010 and 2009. The duration of
the portfolio at year end 2010 was very similar to year end 2009. The only important difference was maturities beyond 90
days had been purchased and cash level had been reduced slightly.
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AUD Liquidity Profile Pie Chart
The pie chart below shows by period buckets the maturity of the holdings at the end of 2010 and 2009. The duration of the
portfolio increased during 2010 mainly due to an increase the 61-90 day bucket and a decrease in the cash bucket.
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EUR Liquidity Profile Pie Chart

The pie chart below shows by period buckets the maturity of the holdings at the end of 2010 and 2009. The duration of the
portfolio increased during 2010 mainly due to maturities beyond 90 days being purchased and to an increase the 61-90 day
bucket, while there had been a decrease in the two shortest term buckets.

Liguidity Profile Liquidity Profile
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CAD Liquidity Profile Pie Chart

The pie chart below shows by period buckets the maturity of the holdings at the end of 2010 and 2009. The duration of the
portfolio increased during 2010 mainly due to an increase the 61-90 day bucket and a decrease in the cash bucket.
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NZD Liquidity Profile Pie Chart

The pie chart below shows by period buckets the maturity of the holdings at the end of 2010 and 2009. The duration of the
portfolio increased during 2010 due to an increase in purchases of maturities beyond 30 days and a small decrease in the
cash bucket.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is measured by the loss the Fund would record if its counterparties failed to perform pursuant to the terms of
their obligations to the Fund. The Fund will be exposed to credit risk on parties with whom it trades and will also bear the
risk of settlement default. The Fund selects only established counterparties that have sufficient experience, knowledge and
creditworthiness. All transactions in listed securities are settled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of
default is considered minimal, as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received payment. Payment
is made on a purchase once the securities have been received by the broker. All of the cash held on overnight deposit is
held with a carefully selected list of banks. Bankruptcy or insolvency by a bank may cause the Fund’s rights with respect
to the cash held on deposit to be delayed or limited. The Investment Manager monitors the credit rating of this list, as
reported by Standard and Poor’s® and Moody’s.
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The Fund’s Custodian is Daiwa Securities Trust and Banking (Europe) plc. The investments and cash of the Fund are held
by Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (the “Sub-Custodian™) at year end. Bankruptcy or insolvency of the Custodian or
Sub-Custodian may cause the Fund’s rights with respect to its investments in debt securities held by the bank to be
delayed or limited.

The Fund’s securities are maintained by the Custodian and Sub-Custodian in segregated accounts. Thus in the event of
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Custodian, the Fund’s assets are segregated. The Fund will, however, be exposed to the
credit risk of the Custodian, or any depository used by the Custodian, in relation to the Fund’s cash held by the Custodian.
In the event of the insolvency or bankruptcy of the Custodian, the Fund will be treated as a general creditor of the
Custodian in relation to cash holdings of the Fund.

An investment universe which lists all the rating eligible securities that the Fund has traded in is maintained and
monitored daily to record rating changes by Moody’s or Standard and Poor’s®. Any rating changes are reported to the
Investment Manager.

A weekly Credit Summary report is produced, which includes a summary portfolio profile (i.e. WAM (weighted average
maturity); Moody’s Matrix (this measures a Class’ aggregate credit quality by evaluating each underlying security);
distribution of security by rating; distribution of security by maturity and a list of specific securities consisting of the
largest credit exposures on the Moody’s Matrix.

usD AUD EUR CAD NzZD
2010 Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio
Aaa 29.96% 15.30% 5.01% 15.13% 39.07%
Aal 3.31% 19.11% 4.50% 28.11% 17.47%
Aa2 34.82% 34.16% 42.41% 46.95% 18.70%
Aa3 20.73% 26.87% 39.33% 9.80% 20.17%
Al 11.18% 4.56% 4.24% 0.00% 4.60%
A2 0.00% 0.00% 4.50% 0.00% 0.00%

usD AUD EUR CAD NzZD
2009 Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio
Aaa 39.98% 41.62% 21.79% 15.76% 50.33%
Aal 1.66% 12.90% 6.20% 6.69% 18.53%
Aa2 26.55% 20.00% 35.51% 39.99% 22.21%
Aa3 16.95% 20.81% 26.85% 26.57% 3.77%
Al 14.86% 4.67% 9.65% 10.99% 5.16%
A2 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

The table on page 50 and above shows the percentage holding by Moody’s long term ratings (A2 to Aaa) at the end of 3™

December 2010 and 31° December 2009. The policy of investing in high quality paper was maintained during the year but
investment in the two top ratings was reduced except in the Canadian portfolio, where it was increased. Investment in A2
paper was still avoided except in the Euro portfolio, and investment in A1 paper was also slightly reduced.
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USD Credit Quality Pie Chart
The pie chart below shows the percentage holding by Moody's long term ratings (A2 to Aaa) at the end of 2010 and 2009.

The credit quality of the portfolio overall was maintained at a high level during 2010. No A2 rated holdings were
purchased and A1 holdings were reduced slightly, but at the same time holdings in the two highest ratings were reduced.

Credit Quality Credit Quality
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AUD Credit Quality Pie Chart
The pie chart below shows the percentage holding by Moody's long term ratings (A2 to Aaa) at the end of 2010 and 2009.

The credit quality of the portfolio overall was maintained at a high level during 2010. No A2 rated holdings were
purchased and A1 holdings were reduced slightly, but at the same time holdings in the two highest ratings were reduced.
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EUR Credit Quality Pie Chart
The pie chart below shows the percentage holding by Moody's long term ratings (A2 to Aaa) at the end of 2010 and 2009.
The credit quality of the portfolio overall was maintained at a high level during 2010. Some A2 rated holdings were
purchased during the year but at the same time Al holdings were reduced, while holding in the two highest ratings were
lower resulting in a big increase in Aa2 and Aa3 holdings.
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CAD Credit Quality Pie Chart

The pie chart below shows the percentage holding by Moody's long term ratings (A2 to Aaa) at the end of 2010 and 2009.
The credit quality of the portfolio improved during the year, there were no A2 or Al holdings and the holding in the three
highest ratings made up 90% of the portfolio.
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NZD Credit Quality Pie Chart
The pie chart below shows the percentage holding by Moody's long term ratings (A2 to Aaa) at the end of 2010 and 2009.
The credit quality of the portfolio was maintained at a high level during 2010. No A2 rated holdings were held at year end
and A1 holdings were slightly reduced, but Aa3 holdings were increased mostly at the expense Aaa investments.
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The below table shows the percentages of security type held by each class.
UsD AUD EUR CAD NZD
Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio
2010
TD Cash 18.90% 17.09% 18.83% 17.74% 18.31%
CD Certificate of Deposit 20.06% 11.71% 29.60% 5.15% 9.34%
CP Commercial Paper 57.34% 39.33% 32.29% 26.71% 39.15%
CB Corporate Bonds 3.70% 31.87% 14.27% 46.90% 33.20%
B T-Bill 0.00% 0.00% 5.01% 0.00% 0.00%
BA Bank Acceptance 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 3.50% 0.00%
2009
D Cash 20.19% 20.36% 19.72% 22.41% 20.25%
CD Certificate of Deposit 16.43% 10.23% 25.46% 24.25% 7.98%
CP Commercial Paper 58.65% 52.15% 27.95% 0.00% 56.76%
CB Corporate Bonds 4.73% 17.26% 0.61% 0.48% 15.01%
B T-Bill 0.00% 0.00% 26.26% 41.80% 0.00%
BA Bank Acceptance 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 11.06% 0.00%

All gains and losses from trading in investments for the year ended 31%' December 2010 and the year ended 31%
December 2009 are included in the Statement of Operations.
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CASH INCLUDING FIXED DEPOSITS
Cash balances are held with the Sub-Custodian. Cash balances and fixed deposits are detailed in Note 5, page 35 to page
44,

The Fund has agreed in certain limited circumstances to subscribe to the Sub-Custodian’s Cash Management Service
(CMS) to invest idle USD AUD, EUR, CAD, and NZD demand deposit balances and uncommitted foreign currency
denominated demand deposit balances in unrestricted overnight deposit instruments in one of the approved financial
institutions. Money is held in these accounts temporarily and only for short periods when money is being wired from
clients to the Fund for contributions, when money for redemptions is being wired from the Fund or when fees are being
paid out of the Fund to recognised third party vendors. Such deposits may be subject to both sovereign actions in the
jurisdiction of the deposit institution and sovereign actions in the jurisdiction of the currency, including but not limited to
freeze, seizure, or diminution. In any case, the risk associated with the repayment of principal and payment of interest on
such instruments by the institution with whom the deposit is ultimately placed will be exclusively for the Fund’s accounts.
All cash was held by the Sub-Custodian at year end.

DEBTORS
uUsD AUD EUR CAD NzZD
Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio
usD AUD EUR CAD NzZD
2010
Receivable for fund units sold 25,746,722 6,337,744 993,626 31,888 5,012,179
Other assets - - 3,297 - -
25,746,722 6,337,744 996,923 31,888 5,012,179
2009
Receivable for fund units sold 12,860,004 27,672,579 889,119 3,130 294,259
Other assets - - 3,297 - -
12,860,004 27,672,579 892,416 3,130 294,259
CREDITORS - Due within one year
uUsD AUD EUR CAD NzZD
Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio
uUsD AUD EUR CAD NzZD
2010
Payable for fund units repurchased 6,790,354 12,112,239 237,640 172,269 2,859,635
Provision for fees payable (Note 10) 531,279 2,872,919 53,141 58,034 1,497,992
Distribution payable 76,991 1,017,903 18,011 3,632 333,974
7,398,624 16,003,061 308,792 233,935 4,691,601
2009
Payable for fund units repurchased 9,684,465 12,934,849 443,086 130,551 4,380,507
Provision for fees payable (Note 10) 551,804 2,556,034 51,401 21,917 1,659,759
Distribution payable 42,034 697,355 7,938 267 310,263
10,278,303 16,188,238 502,425 152,735 6,350,529
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REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING UNITS ISSUED AND REDEEMED DURING THE YEAR

2010 2009

USD Portfolio

Opening Outstanding Units 211,543,501,023 194,135,331,684
Number of Units issued 258,183,431,844 213,805,973,538
Number of Units redeemed (211,195,136,126) (196,397,804,199)
Closing Outstanding Units 258,531,796,741 211,543,501,023
AUD Portfolio

Opening Outstanding Units 162,562,895,264 132,515,766,006
Number of Units issued 237,299,222,524 218,797,582,638
Number of Units redeemed (223,351,153,420) (188,750,453,380)
Closing Outstanding Units 176,510,964,368 162,562,895,264
EUR Portfolio

Opening Outstanding Units 17,922,642,718 17,720,757,151
Number of Units issued 13,216,408,276 11,177,169,879
Number of Units redeemed (11,118,066,208) (10,975,284,312)
Closing Outstanding Units 20,020,984,786 17,922,642,718
CAD Portfolio

Opening Outstanding Units 3,285,765,865 3,959,957,398
Number of Units issued 2,166,776,013 1,597,328,924
Number of Units redeemed (1,510,270,646) (2,271,520,457)
Closing Outstanding Units 3,942,271,232 3,285,765,865
NZD Portfolio

Opening Outstanding Units 92,763,474,293 100,820,610,886
Number of Units issued 64,350,267,715 94,448,935,455
Number of Units redeemed (76,072,270,203) (102,506,072,048)
Closing Outstanding Units 81,041,471,805 92,763,474,293

FEES AND EXPENSES

Each Class pays a fee to the Manager and the Trustee, the aggregate of which is less than 1% per annum of the Net Asset
Value of each Class. This fee is payable quarterly in arrears and is accrued on a daily basis, save in respect of that portion
of the Manager’s fee which is payable to the Investment Manager, which portion of the fee shall accrue daily and be
payable twice per quarter. The Investment Manager remunerates the Investment Adviser. The Agent Securities Company
as well as the Distributors are reimbursed their out-of-pocket expenses directly out of the administration expenses of the
relevant Class. Each Class also reimburses the Manager all of its administration expenses.

The Trustee is repaid its disbursements out of the relevant Class, which includes the fees and disbursements of any
sub-custodian.

The Manager pays out of the fees received by it from the portfolio, the fees of the Investment Manager, the Distributor
and the Agent Company.
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The fees payable are as follows:

usD AUD EUR CAD NzD
Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio
usD AUD EUR CAD NzD
2010
Investment Manager fees 11,386 174,465 832 2,220 106,455
Administration fees 23,420 149,180 1,688 2,002 68,930
Sub-Custodian fees 25,197 160,655 1,818 2,156 74,232
Trustee fees 12,566 80,328 909 1,078 37,116
Distributors’ fees and Agent
Security fees 350,193 2,221,513 25,965 31,415 1,014,246
Audit fees 34,656 22,761 2,756 423 12,236
Other expenses 73,861 64,017 19,173 18,740 184,777
531,279 2,872,919 53,141 58,034 1,497,992
2009
Investment Manager fees 8,756 160,119 690 140 105,202
Administration fees 19,413 125,376 1,484 302 78,160
Sub-Custodian fees 20,885 135,021 1,598 326 84,173
Trustee fees 10,415 67,510 799 162 42,086
Distributors’ fees and Agent
Security fees 299,919 1,928,866 22,831 4,649 1,202,469
Audit fees 38,881 23,831 3,036 603 15,985
Other expenses 153,535 115,311 20,963 15,735 131,684
551,804 2,556,034 51,401 21,917 1,659,759

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There were no transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of business. The Manager,
Investment Manager, Investment Adviser and related companies are deemed to be related parties under FRS 8. Fees
incurred with related parties during the year are disclosed in the Statement of Operations. Amounts payable to related
parties at the year end are disclosed in Note 10.

The number of investors that held more than 10% of the Net Assets attributable to Redeemable Participating Unitholders
at trading valuation of the Fund at the end of the year are as follows:

2010 2009
USD Portfolio 2 2
AUD Portfolio 2 2
EUR Portfolio 2 2
CAD Portfolio 1 1
NZD Portfolio 2 2

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Manager declares distributions in respect of each of the Classes on each dealing day. The amount per Unit distributed
from each Class is a sum equal to the amount required to maintain the relevant Net Asset Value per Unit on each dealing
day to 0.01 units of the relevant currency of each Class.
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13. NET ASSET VALUE HISTORY

2010 2009 2008
USD Portfolio
Net Asset Value USD2,585,318,062 USD2,115,435,105 USD1,941,353,412
Number of Units 258,531,796,741 211,543,501,023 194,135,331,684
Net Asset Value per Unit uUsDO0.01 UsSDO0.01 UsDO0.01
AUD Portfolio
Net Asset Value AUDL1,765,109,673 AUD1,625,628,982 AUD1,325,157,690
Number of Units 176,510,964,368 162,562,895,264 132,515,766,006
Net Asset Value per Unit AUDO0.01 AUDO0.01 AUDO0.01
EUR Portfolio
Net Asset Value EUR200,209,851 EUR179,226,431 EUR177,207,576
Number of Units 20,020,984,786 17,922,642,718 17,720,757,151
Net Asset Value per Unit EURO0.01 EURO0.01 EURO0.01
CAD Portfolio
Net Asset Value CAD39,422,713 CAD32,857,660 CAD39,599,575
Number of Units 3,942,271,232 3,285,765,865 3,959,957,398
Net Asset Value per Unit CADO0.01 CADO0.01 CADO0.01
NZD Portfolio
Net Asset Value NzD810,414,729 NzD927,634,753 NzD1,008,206,118
Number of Units 81,041,471,805 92,763,474,293 100,820,610,886
Net Asset Value per Unit NZDO0.01 NzD0.01 NZD0.01

14. TAXATION

Under current law and practice, the Fund qualifies as an investment undertaking as defined in Section 739B of the Taxes
Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended. The Fund is not chargeable to Irish tax on its income or capital gains. However,
Irish tax can arise on the happening of a “chargeable event” in the Fund. A chargeable event includes any distribution
payments to shareholders or any encashment, redemption or transfer of shares. No tax will arise in respect of chargeable
events in respect of a shareholder who is an Exempt Irish Investor (as defined in Section 739D of the Taxes Consolidation
Act, 1997, as amended) or who is neither Irish resident nor ordinarily resident in Ireland for tax purposes at the time of the
chargeable event, provided, in each case, that an appropriate valid declaration in accordance with Schedule 2B of the
Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997 (as amended) is held by the Fund. The current situation with regard to Irish Unitholders is
currently under review. Capital gains, dividends and coupon interest received by the Fund may be subject to withholding
taxes imposed by the country of origin and such taxes may not be recoverable by the Fund or its Unitholders.

15. SOFT COMMISSION ARRANGEMENTS
The Fund does not have any soft commission arrangements.

16. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Subsequent to 31%' December 2010 and up to 20" April 2011 there were subscriptions of USD924,959,825,
AUDA493,665,444, EUR33,231,388, CAD2,670,185 and NZD127,889,637 for the USD portfolio, AUD portfolio, EUR
portfolio, CAD portfolio and NZD portfolio respectively.

Subsequent to 31%' December 2010 and up to 20" April 2011 there were redemptions of USD764,243,413,
AUD724,103,369, EUR42,221,896, CAD4,970,899 and NZD151,301,948 for the USD portfolio, AUD portfolio, EUR
portfolio, CAD portfolio and NZD portfolio respectively.

There were no events subsequent to the year end which require disclosure in the financial statements.
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF

U.S. DOLLAR PORTFOLIO

Schedule of Investments

31" December 2010
Nominal Fair Value % of
Debt Obligations Holding usD NAV
Australia
Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi Australia 0.35% YLD 22-Feb-11 30,000,000 29,985,721 1.16
Bank of Western Australia 0.28% YLD 31-Jan-11 85,000,000 84,982,163 3.29
Mizuho Corp Bank Sydney 0.31% YLD 11-Jan-11 77,000,000 76,995,361 2.98
Mizuho Corp Bank Sydney 0.35% YLD 22-Feb-11 40,000,000 39,980,956 1.55
Rabobank Australia 0.28% YLD 24-Feb-11 28,000,000 27,988,901 1.08
Tasmania Public Finance 0.32% YLD 18-Jan-11 5,500,000 5,499,316 0.21
Tasmania Public Finance 0.30% YLD 14-Feb-11 40,500,000 40,486,172 1.56
305,918,590 11.83
Austria
Bundesimmobiliengesellschaft MBH 0.38% YLD 14-Mar-11 39,000,000 38,971,622 151
38,971,622 1.51
Belgium
ENI Coordination Center SA 0.29% YLD 31-Jan-11 90,000,000 89,980,440 3.48
ENI Coordination Center SA 0.31% YLD 18-Feb-11 25,000,000 24,990,320 0.97
114,970,760 4.45
France
Agence Centrale Des Organismes De 0.30% YLD 04-Feb-11 90,000,000 89,976,768 3.48
Agence Centrale Des Organismes De 0.30% YLD 17-Feb-11 25,000,000 24,990,688 0.97
Caisse Des Depos Et Con 0.28% YLD 08-Feb-11 43,000,000 42,988,303 1.66
Caisse Des Depos Et Con 0.31% YLD 14-Feb-11 60,000,000 59,978,834 2.32
Caisse Des Depos Et Con 0.40% YLD 10-Mar-11 12,000,000 11,991,342 0.46
SNCF 0.29% YLD 12-Jan-11 25,000,000 24,998,390 0.97
SNCF 0.33%YLD 28-Feb-11 21,000,000 20,989,421 0.81
Societe Generale Paris 0.44% YLD 01-Apr-11 10,000,000 9,989,382 0.39
285,903,128 11.06
Germany
KFW 0.39% YLD 04-Apr-11 95,000,000 94,907,494 3.67
L-Bank Foerderbank 0.32% YLD 04-Feb-11 13,000,000 12,996,421 0.50
L-Bank Foerderbank 0.40% YLD 14-Mar-11 107,000,000 106,918,049 4.14
214,821,964 8.31
Hong Kong
Societe Generale SA (Hong Kong) 0.32% YLD 12-Jan-11 40,000,000 39,997,158 1.55
Societe Generale SA (Hong Kong) 0.38% YLD 10-Mar-11 24,000,000 23,983,548 0.93
Societe Generale SA (Hong Kong) 0.39% YLD 10-Mar-11 25,000,000 24,982,637 0.96
88,963,343 3.44
Ireland
Intesa SanPaolo Ireland Plc 0.56% YLD 23-Mar-11 65,000,000 64,921,246 251
Intesa SanPaolo Ireland Plc 0.52% YLD 31-Mar-11 20,000,000 19,975,188 0.77
84,896,434 3.28
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Schedule of Investments (Continued)

Nominal Fair Value % of
Debt Obligations (continued) Holding usD NAV
Japan
Norinchukin Bank 0.31% YLD 12-Jan-11 25,000,000 24,998,279 0.97
Norinchukin Bank 0.31% YLD 14-Jan-11 12,000,000 11,998,967 0.46
Norinchukin Bank 0.31% YLD 21-Jan-11 23,000,000 22,996,636 0.89
Norinchukin Bank 0.31% YLD 25-Jan-11 55,000,000 54,990,062 2.13
114,983,944 4.45
Luxembourg
Banque Et Caisse Epargne 0.30% YLD 28-Feb-11 30,000,000 29,986,261 1.16
29,986,261 1.16
Netherlands
Bank Ned Gemeenten 0.34% YLD 07-Mar-11 61,000,000 60,964,321 2.36
Bank Ned Gemeenten 0.36% YLD 28-Mar-11 54,000,000 53,955,233 2.09
Nederlandse Waterchaps 0.33% YLD 14-Mar-11 20,500,000 20,486,852 0.79
135,406,406 5.24
United Kingdom
BNZ International Funding Ltd 0.29% YLD 14-Feb-11 115,000,000 114,961,393 4.45
Mitsubishi Corporation Finance 0.36% YLD 12-Jan-11 55,000,000 55,000,000 2.13
Mitsubishi Corporation Finance 0.37% YLD 18-Mar-11 50,000,000 50,000,000 1.93
Mitsubishi UFJ TB LDN 0.33% YLD 06-Jan-11 20,000,000 19,999,634 0.77
Mitsubishi UFJ TB LDN 0.35% YLD 04-Mar-11 37,000,000 36,978,794 1.43
Standard Chartered 0.35% YLD 11-Jan-11 45,000,000 44,996,896 1.74
Standard Chartered 0.33% YLD 13-Jan-11 60,000,000 59,995,054 2.32
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 0.35% YLD 10-Mar-11 93,000,000 93,000,000 3.60
Sumitomo Trust & Banking 0.31% YLD 18-Jan-11 35,000,000 35,000,000 1.35
Sumitomo Trust & Banking 0.30% YLD 20-Jan-11 80,000,000 80,000,000 3.10
589,931,771 22.82
United States
Schlumberger Finance BV 0.31% YLD 14-Jan-11 7,000,000 6,999,398 0.27
Schlumberger Finance BV 0.31% YLD 18-Jan-11 42,000,000 41,994,941 1.62
Schlumberger Finance BV 0.33% YLD 20-Jan-11 28,000,000 27,995,898 1.08
76,990,237 2.97
Coupon interest receivable 171,016 0.01
171,016 0.01
Total Debt Obligations 2,081,915,476 80.53
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AUSTRALIAN DOLLAR PORTFOLIO

Schedule of Investments

31" December 2010
Nominal Fair Value % of
Debt Obligations Holding AUD NAV
Australia
Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi Australia 4.90% YLD 10-Feb-11 32,000,000 31,840,838 1.80
Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi Australia 4.92% YLD 09-Mar-11 52,000,000 51,550,700 2.92
Bank of Western Australia 4.93% YLD 14-Mar-11 28,000,000 27,738,786 157
Bank of Western Australia 4.94% YLD 14-Mar-11 35,000,000 34,672,651 1.96
Barclays Bank Australia 4.88% YLD 10-Mar-11 84,000,000 83,268,788 4.72
Commonwealth Bank of Australia 7.75% YLD 21-Jan-11 3,728,000 3,732,158 0.21
Deutsche Australia Ltd 4.78% YLD 12-Jan-11 60,000,000 59,937,036 3.40
Deutsche Australia Ltd 4.70% YLD 20-Jan-11 17,000,000 16,964,910 0.96
GE Capital Australia Funding 5.75% YLD 18-Jan-11 15,274,000 15,275,109 0.87
GE Capital Australia Funding 7.50% YLD 25-Jan-11 6,008,000 6,014,143 0.34
GE Capital Australia Funding 8.00% YLD 25-Jan-11 1,182,000 1,183,507 0.07
GE Capital Australia Funding 8.50% YLD 28-Feb-11 20,716,000 20,798,507 1.18
Mizuho Corp Bank Sydney 4.87% YLD 07-Feb-11 55,000,000 54,750,107 3.10
National Australia Bank 4.73% YLD 07-Jan-11 11,000,000 10,995,712 0.62
National Australia Bank 4.85% YLD 12-Jan-11 50,000,000 49,946,550 2.83
Nestle Australia 4.72% YLD 14-Jan-11 16,000,000 15,979,232 0.91
Nestle Australia 4.93% YLD 18-Feb-11 32,000,000 31,805,448 1.80
Rabobank Australia 4.90% YLD 10-Feb-11 41,000,000 40,795,840 231
Rabobank Australia 4.97% YLD 15-Mar-11 37,000,000 36,646,824 2.08
Sumitomo Mitsui Finance Australia 4.90% YLD 04-Feb-11 54,000,000 53,774,938 3.05
Sumitomo Mitsui Finance Australia 5.01% YLD 02-Mar-11 30,000,000 29,764,969 1.69
Toyota Finance Australia 5.01% YLD 16-Feb-11 18,000,000 17,893,623 1.01
Toyota Finance Australia 4.96% YLD 22-Mar-11 60,000,000 59,371,126 3.36
Westpac Banking 4.83% YLD 07-Jan-11 25,000,000 24,990,063 1.42
Westpac Banking 5.05% YLD 18-Mar-11 58,000,000 57,413,550 3.25
837,105,115 47.43
France
Agence Centrale Des Organismes De 4.97% YLD 03-Mar-11 45,000,000 44,644,097 2.53
Agence Centrale Des Organismes De 4.92% YLD 08-Mar-11 17,000,000 16,855,408 0.96
BNP Paribas Ltd 4.89% YLD 14-Feb-11 50,000,000 49,725,052 2.82
BNP Paribas Ltd 4.91% YLD 16-Feb-11 35,000,000 34,797,279 1.97
Caisse Des Depos Et Con 4.92% YLD 22-Mar-11 40,000,000 39,584,237 2.24
185,606,073 10.52
Germany
L-Bank Foerderbank 4.88% YLD 10-Feb-11 50,000,000 49,752,311 2.82
L-Bank Foerderbank 6.25% YLD 14-Feb-11 17,300,000 17,321,160 0.98
L-Bank Foerderbank 4.94% YLD 21-Mar-11 17,000,000 16,824,872 0.95
NRW Bank 4.87% YLD 08-Feb-11 67,000,000 66,686,673 3.78
NRW Bank 4.88% YLD 10-Feb-11 12,000,000 11,940,555 0.68
162,525,571 9.21
Hong Kong
Societe Generale SA (Hong Kong) 4.94% YLD 06-Jan-11 80,000,000 79,978,333 4.53
79,978,333 453
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Schedule of Investments (Continued)

Nominal Fair Value % of
Debt Obligations (continued) Holding AUD NAV
Ireland
Intesa SanPaolo Bank Ireland Plc 4.74% YLD 01-Feb-11 41,000,000 40,850,617 2.31
Intesa SanPaolo Bank Ireland Plc 4.96% YLD 15-Mar-11 32,000,000 31,695,158 1.80
72,545,775 411
Netherlands
Rabobank Australia 5.5% YLD 05-Jan-11 2,383,000 2,383,014 0.14
Rabobank Nederland 5.63% YLD 01-Mar-11 3,936,000 3,937,196 0.22
6,320,210 0.36
Supranational
European Invest Bank 5.38% YLD 24-Jan-11 2,000,000 2,000,500 0.11
2,000,500 0.11
United Kingdom
Standard Chartered 4.80% YLD 11-Jan-11 34,000,000 33,968,631 1.92
Standard Chartered 4.75% YLD 18-Jan-11 25,000,000 24,954,373 141
Standard Chartered 4.75% YLD 20-Jan-11 22,000,000 21,954,112 1.24
Sumitomo Trust & Banking 4.77% YLD 12-Jan-11 36,000,000 36,000,000 2.04
116,877,116 6.61
United States
Nestle Holdings 7.25% YLD 31-Jan-11 2,910,000 2,914,335 0.17
Toyota Motor Credit 6.38% YLD 18-Jan-11 1,213,000 1,213,536 0.07
4,127,871 0.24
Coupon interest receivable 4,644,508 0.26
4,644,508 0.26
Total Debt Obligations 1,471,731,072 83.38
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Australia
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF

EURO PORTFOLIO

31% December 2010

ENI Coordination Center SA 0.70% YLD 18-Jan-11

France
HSBC France 0.72% YLD 14-Mar-11
Societe Generale Paris 0.82% YLD 01-Mar-11

Germany
Toyota Leasing GMBH 0.82% YLD 02-Feb-11

Ireland
Intesa SanPaolo Ireland Plc 0.99% YLD 24-Feb-11

Italy
Intesa SanPaolo SPA 3.50% YLD 24-Feb-11
Italy T-Bill 1.04% YLD 15-Feb-11

Japan

Norinchukin Bank 0.79% YLD 28-Feb-11
Sumitomo Corp Capital Europe 0.93% YLD 03-Ma
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 0.78% YLD 17-Feb-11
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 0.65% YLD 30-Mar-11

Netherlands
Rabobank Nederland 0.66% YLD 14-Jan-11

Sweden
Nordea Bank Ab 0.67% YLD 10-Feb-11

United Kingdom

r-11

Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Ltd 0.71% YLD 31-Jan-11

Barclays Bank 0.85% YLD 10-Mar-11

Mitsubishi UFJ TB LDN 0.68% YLD 07-Jan-11
Mizuho Corp Bank 0.90% YLD 25-Mar-11
Standard Chartered 4.88 YLD 11-Mar-11
Sumitomo Trust & Banking 0.80% YLD 07-Feb-11
Sumitomo Trust & Banking 0.90% YLD 07-Feb-11
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Nominal
Holding

5,000,000

9,000,000
10,000,000

10,000,000
8,500,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

3,000,000
10,000,000

10,000,000
9,000,000
5,000,000
5,000,000

10,000,000

10,000,000

1,000,000
10,000,000
8,000,000
10,000,000
1,400,000
4,000,000
5,000,000

Fair Value % of
EUR NAV
4,994,908 2.49
4,994,908 2.49
8,979,305 4.49
9,997,283 4,99
18,976,588 9.48
9,986,320 4.99
8,489,180 4.24
18,475,500 9.23
4,996,684 2.50
4,996,684 2.50
5,991,607 2.99
5,991,607 2.99
3,009,544 1.50
9,987,960 4.99
12,997,504 6.49
9,987,956 4.99
8,986,546 4.49
5,000,000 2.50
5,000,000 2.50
28,974,502 14.48
9,998,169 4.99
9,998,169 4.99
9,993,121 4.99
9,993,121 4,99
999,947 0.50
9,984,685 4,99
7,999,548 4,00
10,000,000 4,99
1,409,146 0.70
4,000,000 2.00
5,000,000 2.50
39,393,326 19.68
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Schedule of Investments (Continued)

Nominal Fair Value % of

Debt Obligations (continued) Holding EUR NAV
United States

Schlumberger Finance BV 0.78% YLD 25-Jan-11 7,000,000 6,996,821 3.49

6,996,821 3.49

Coupon interest receivable 167,560 0.08

167,560 0.08

Total Debt Obligations 161,956,290 80.89

154/264



EDINETOO OO
0000000000000000000000000000000000(E14857)
0000000000000000000

DAIWA GAIKA MMF

CANADIAN DOLLAR PORTFOLIO

Schedule of Investments

31" December 2010
Nominal Fair Value % of
Debt Obligations Holding CAD NAV
Canada
Bank of Montreal 4.69% YLD 31-Jan-11 3,000,000 3,007,579 7.63
Bank of Nova Scotia 4.58% YLD 15-Feb-11 3,000,000 3,011,323 7.64
Canadian Imperial Bank 4.40% YLD 07-Mar-11 2,850,000 2,865,971 7.27
Manitoba (Province of) 5.85% YLD 25-Jan-11 3,050,000 3,058,006 7.76
National Bank of Canada 1.10% YLD 04-Feb-11 1,800,000 1,798,294 4.56
National Bank of Canada 1.10% YLD 23-Feb-11 1,200,000 1,198,177 3.04
14,939,350 37.90
France
Agence Centrale Des Organismes De 1.10% YLD 08-Feb-11 3,000,000 2,996,801 7.60
Total Capital SA 4% YLD 25-Feb-11 1,868,000 1,875,111 4.76
4,871,912 12.36
Germany
L-Bank Foerderbank 1.20% YLD 18-Jan-11 3,000,000 2,998,604 7.60
NRW Bank 1.19% YLD 14-Jan-11 3,000,000 2,999,011 7.61
5,997,615 15.21
Italy
Intesa SanPaolo SPA 1.15% YLD 28-Jan-11 2,000,000 1,998,471 5.07
1,998,471 5.07
United Kingdom
BNZ International Funding Ltd 1.10% YLD 14-Mar-11 2,500,000 2,494,744 6.33
Mitsubishi UFJ TB LDN 1.13% YLD 22-Mar-11 2,000,000 1,995,180 5.06
4,489,924 11.39
Coupon interest receivable 299,487 0.76
299,487 0.76
Total Debt Obligations 32,596,759 82.69
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NEW ZEALAND DOLLAR PORTFOLIO

Schedule of Investments

31" December 2010
Nominal Fair Value % of
Debt Obligations Holding NzD NAV
Australia
Australia NZ Banking Group 3.25% YLD 18-Feb-11 30,000,000 29,881,815 3.69
Bank of Western Australia 3.30% YLD 24-Feb-11 20,000,000 19,909,100 2.45
Bank of Western Australia 3.26% YLD 18-Mar-11 18,000,000 17,883,609 2.21
Deutsche Bank Australia 3.18% YLD 12-Jan-11 15,000,000 14,990,800 1.85
82,665,324 10.20
France
Agence Centrale Des Organismes De 3.27% YLD 25-Feb-11 36,000,000 35,834,612 4.42
Caisse Des Depos Et Con 3.24% YLD 28-Feb-11 36,000,000 35,826,461 4.42
Societe Generale Paris 3.20% YLD 08-Feb-11 38,000,000 37,886,087 4.68
109,547,160 13.52
Germany
KFW 8.00% YLD 14-Jan-11 2,231,000 2,233,418 0.28
KFW 3.19% YLD 11-Mar-11 40,000,000 39,771,394 491
KFW 3.24% YLD 18-Mar-11 30,000,000 29,807,509 3.68
L-Bank Foerderbank 3.31% YLD 28-Feb-11 30,000,000 29,850,527 3.68
Landwirtschaftliche Rentenbank 3.14% YLD 05-Jan-11 25,000,000 25,000,000 3.08
NRW Bank 3.28% YLD 16-Feb-11 36,000,000 35,863,385 4.42
162,526,233 20.05
Ireland
Intesa SanPaolo Ireland Plc 3.32% YLD 28-Mar-11 38,000,000 37,714,949 4.65
37,714,949 4.65
Netherlands
Bank Ned Gemeenten 3.19% YLD 26-Jan-11 36,000,000 35,933,551 4.43
Rabobank Ned 3.15% YLD 06-Jan-11 35,000,000 34,996,947 4.32
Rabobank Ned 6.50% YLD 18-Jan-11 2,220,000 2,222,285 0.28
73,152,783 9.03
Norway
Eksportfinans ASA 3.20% YLD 18-Jan-11 38,000,000 37,956,445 4.68
Kommunalbanken AS 2.70% YLD 15-Mar-11 31,000,000 30,955,436 3.82
68,911,881 8.50
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Schedule of Investments (Continued)

Nominal Fair Value % of
Debt Obligations (continued) Holding NzD NAV

Supranational
Asian Develelopment Bank 6.76% YLD 27-Jan-11 5,700,000 5,711,404 0.70
International Bank for Rec & Dev 6.25% YLD 24-Feb-11 2,500,000 2,509,063 0.31
International Bank for Rec & Dev 7.02% YLD 25-Feb-11 5,000,000 5,025,362 0.62
13,245,829 1.63

United Kingdom

Mitsubishi Corporation Finance 3.27% YLD 28-Jan-11 37,000,000 37,000,000 4.57
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 3.25% YLD 18-Feb-11 37,000,000 37,000,000 4.57
74,000,000 9.14

United States
General Electric Capital Corp 7.50% YLD 28-Feb-11 1,234,000 1,240,952 0.16
Toyota Motor Credit 3.25% YLD 07-Feb-11 28,000,000 27,983,644 3.45
Toyota Motor Credit 4.15% YLD 21-Apr-11 9,000,000 9,005,963 111
38,230,559 4.72
Coupon interest receivable 1,826,686 0.23
1,826,686 0.23
Total Debt Obligations 661,821,404 81.67
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Uus
(2011 )

( )
2,708,361,(914.54 222,302 346
600, 033. 31 49, 251
2,707,761,/]881. 23 222,253 095

270, 776,172,649
0.01 1
(2011 )

( )
1,492,649,|321. 12 133,816 012
2,565,192. 74 229,9Yy0
1,490, 084,/128. 38 133,586)| 042

149,008, 403,589

0.01 1
(2011 )
( )

191, 306, 439. 32 23,295,]1385
88,918)| 86 10, 828
191,217, 520. 46 23,284,557

19,121, 750, 362
0.01 1
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(2011 )
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37,372,6(3.48 3,237,p21
40,170| 85 3,489D
37,332,5p2.63 3,233,741

3,733,250, 087
0.01 1
(2011 )
( )
766, 044, 808. 92 50,689,/185
1,078, 806.95 71, 385
764,966, 001. 97 50,617,|800
76,496,595, 815
0.01 1

159/264



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oo00o0o00oo00bDo00noOO(ELD4857)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(1)

(2)
50

14

MMF
(3)

160/264



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oo00o0o00oo00bDo00noOO(ELD4857)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

40 ( 5,480 ) 2011 40

(2)

161/264



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oo00o0o00oo00bDo00noOO(ELD4857)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(3)
(2011 )

1991 1997 0
(Peret Calljlaghan)|1997 2001 KPMG

2001 2006

2006

1979 1988 0
(Brian Guyejt)

1988 1990

1990 20014

2004

1972 1983 0
(Karl McEnef f) 1983 1990

1990

162/264



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oo00o0o00oo00bDo00noOO(ELD4857)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MMF
MMEF

MMEF

MMF

MMF

MMF

163/264



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oo00o0o00oo00bDo00noOO(ELD4857)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

23 MM F (
1,590,243,200. 93 80, 140,395.51 196, 765, 411.59
3,309,812,172.01 )

1,490,084, 128. 38

37,332,502.63

MMF 1 191,217,520. 46

764,966, 001. 97

2,707,761,881. 23

100,159, 072.55

42,807,892.88

5 5,547,891.13

103,080,152.11

602,050, 290. 78
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2010 31

2010 2009

760, 986 92,665 907,067 110, 454

3,296,758 401,446 2,953,029 359,590

4,756,377 579,184 7,730,431 941, 335

8,053,135 980,63010,683, 460, 300, 925

(2,933,647)357,230)2,816, 108)342, 917)

5,119,488 623, 400 7,867,352 958, 007

(99,386) (12,102)(800,000) (97, 416)

5,781,088 703,963 7,974,419 971, 045

10 492,338 59,952 492,338 59,952
11 5,288,750644,011 7,482,081 911, 093
11 5,781,088 703,963 7,974,419 971,045

2010 17
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(2)

2010 3 31

2010 2009

( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
14,341,950, 746, 4197,846,972,173,226
93,600 11,398 — —

(16,628,302)024,88ap, 971,802)553, 748)

(2,192,844)267,0230)3, 124, 920)380, 522)

52,579 6, 403 266, 555 32,458

(2,140, 265)260, 620)2, 858, 365)348, 063)

(53,066) (6,462) (115,964) (14, 121)

(2,193,331)267,0820)2, 974, 329)362, 184)

2010 17
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2010 2009
11,940,633 14,915,215
4,687,761 6,056,679
16,628,394 20,971,894
8,541,047 9,757,938
1,058,515 1,237,641
669,482 786,061
1,671,589 3,133,575
11,940,633 14,915,215

183 2009 202
DETIL

2010 2009
733,542 931,662
36,540 36,340
22,500 26,410
461,557 1,513,804
31,629 48,776
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2010 2009

51,568 52,444

(28,915)

1,498 92,435

53,066 115,964

2010 2009

(2,140,265) (2,858,365)

12.5% (267,533) (357,296)

(53,283) 83,178

(6,528) (80,061)

2,251 12,660

51,568 52,444

61,449 129,119

263,644 212,400

51,568 52,444
1,565,266 3,248,324 1,186,296 5,999,886
1,372 18,613 295,491 315,476

(530) (530)
1,566,638 3,266,937 1,481,257 6,314,832
929,888 3,174,769 988,162 5,092,819
253,362 50,176 158,019 461,557
(530) (530)

1,183,250 3,224,945 1,145,651 5,553,846
383,388 41,992 335,606 760,986
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2009 3 31
2008 3 31 1,435,447 3,188,547 1,028,123 5,652,117
129,819 59,777 158,173 347,769
2009 3 31 1,565,266 3,248,324 1,186,296 5,999,886
2008 3 31 672,614 2,136,914 769,487 3,579,015
257,274 1,037,855 218,675 1,513,804
2009 3 31 929,888 3,174,769 988,162 5,092,819
2009 3 31 635,378 73,555 198,134 907,067
1

2010 2009
2,191,249 2,076,781
826,605 781,365
121,959 50,525

876
150,462 37,253
5,607 7,105
3,296,758 2,953,029
1,056,028 2009 787,384

2010 2009
4,756,377 7,730,431
4,756,377 7,730,431
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1,177,370
492,207

353,939
910,131
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2009

1,716,236
253,603
497
322,738
523,034

2,933,647

2,816,108

2010

800,000

(700,614)

2009

800,000

99,386

800,000

2009

2010

400,000

400,000 492,338

2009

492,338

2010

7,974,419
(2,193,331)

2009

10,948,748
(2,974,329)

5,781,088

7,974,419

2010

7,482,081
(2,193,331)

2009

10,456,410
(2,974,329)

5,288,750

7,482,081
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2010 2009

23,917 49,117

898,089 898,089
898,089 23,917 898,089 49,117

2010 2009
669,482 786,061
44,856 56,837
8
1 1996
1 9-1
2 5
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18
2010 3 31
$ 1,965,000 € 1,365,469 € (92,354)
\" 141,000,000 €1,087,828 € (31,841)
$ 510,000 € 305,105 £ (40,869)
€ (165,064)
2010 4 1 2010 12 31
2009 3 31
$ 7,405,000 €5,277,716 € (286,607)
\ 216,700,000 € 1,550,958 € (101,096)
$ 970,000 €376,098 €25211
€ (362,492)
19 1986
1986 17
17 2010 3 31
20
21

2010 6 17
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Daiwa Europe Fund Managers Ireland Limited

Balance sheet
at 31 March 2010
Note 2010 2009
€ €
Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets 5 760,986 907,067
Current assets
Debtors 6 3,296,758 2,953,029
Cash at bank and in hand 7 4,756,377 7,730,431
8,053,135 10,683,460
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 8 (2,933,647) (2,816,108)
Net current assets 5,119,488 7,867,352
Provision for liabilities and charges 9 (99,386) (800,000)
Net assets 5,781,088 7,974,419
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 10 492,338 492,338
Profit and loss account 11 5,288,750 7,482,081
Equity shareholder’s funds 11 5,781,088 7,974,419

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this balance sheet.

On behalf of the board

17 June 2010
Karl McEneff Peter Callaghan
Director Director
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Daiwa Europe Fund Managers Ireland Limited

Profit and loss account
for the year ended 31 March 2010

Note 2010 2009
€ €
Turnover 14,341,950 17,846,974
Other income 93,600 -
Administrative expenses 2 (16,628,394) (20,971,894)
Loss on ordinary activities before interest and taxation (2,192,844) (3,124,920)
Interest income 52,579 266,555
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation 3 (2,140,265) (2,858,365)
Taxation on ordinary activities 4 (53,066) (115,964)
Loss for the year (2,193,331) (2,974,329)
The company had no recognised gains or losses other than the loss for the year.
All results have been generated by continuing operations.
The accompanying notes form an integral part of this profit and loss account.
On behalf of the board
17 June 2010

Karl McEneff
Director

Peter Callaghan
Director
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Daiwa Europe Fund Managers Ireland Limited

Statement of accounting policies
for the year ended 31 March 2010

The principal accounting policies adopted by the Company are as follows:

Basis of Preparation
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and comply with financial reporting standards of the
Accounting Standards Board, as promulgated by The Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland.

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expense. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the periods in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised in the profit and loss account on an accruals basis.

Turnover and Administration Expenses

Turnover comprises fee income which is accounted for on an accruals basis. Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.
Turnover and administration expenses are shown net of amounts earned by and paid to other service providers be they group
companies or other non- group service providers.

Cash
Cash comprises cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand, less overdrafts payable on demand.

Foreign Currencies
The financial statements are expressed in Euro (€), which is the functional and presentation currency of the company.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates prevailing at the
balance sheet date. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated at rates which approximate the rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Share capital is translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of its issue.

Profits and losses arising from currency translation and on settlement of amounts receivable and payable in foreign currencies
are dealt with in the profit and loss account.

Taxation
Corporation tax is provided on taxable profits at current attributable rates.

In accordance with FRS 19 ‘Deferred Tax’, except where otherwise required by accounting standards, full provision without
discounting is made for all timing differences which have arisen but not reversed at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
balances are provided at rates of taxation expected to prevail at the time of reversal.

A deferred tax asset is recorded where it is more likely than not to be recoverable. The recoverability of deferred tax assets is
assessed annually by the directors.
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Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Depreciation is charged in equal instalments on the cost of assets over
their expected useful lives.

Furniture and equipment 5 years
Software 3 years
Mainframe Equipment 3 years
Personal Computers 2 years

Asset values are closely monitored and are subject to provisions for impairment where necessary. Assets in the course of
development are not depreciated until they are brought into use.

Employee benefits
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account
when they are due.

Off balance sheet financial instruments
Off-balance sheet items such as forward contracts are used entirely for hedging purposes. Gains and losses arising from
hedging transactions are recognised in accordance with the underlying transactions.

Government grants

During the year the company was in receipt of employee subsidy grant income. This is recognised in the profit and loss account
in accordance with SSAP 4. Where grants are made to give immediate financial support or reimburse costs already incurred,
amounts are recognised in the profit and loss account in the period in which they become receivable. Provision is made for
obligations to repay amounts if this is considered probable.

179/264



EDINETOO OO
0000000000000000000000000000000000(E14857)
(o oo o o s o o o o o e o

Daiwa Europe Fund Managers Ireland Limited

Notes
forming part of the financial statements

1 Ownership and operations
The Company, which is engaged in the provision of administration services to various funds, is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Daiwa Securities Trust Europe Limited, a company incorporated in the Republic of Ireland. The ultimate
parent company is Daiwa Securities Group Inc., a company incorporated in Japan.

The Company has entered into agreements with various entities to which it provides services. Under these agreements,
the Company has undertaken to provide administration services for an agreed fee.

2 Administrative expenses

2010 2009
€ €
Staff costs 11,940,633 14,915,215
Other administrative expenses 4,687,761 6,056,679
16,628,394 20,971,894

Staff cost comprise:
Wages and salaries 8,541,047 9,757,938
Social welfare costs 1,058,515 1,237,641
Pension costs 669,482 786,061
Other costs 1,671,589 3,133,575
11,940,633 14,915,215

The average number of persons employed by the company (including directors) during the year was 183 (2009:202). The
Company shared the use of facilities with Daiwa Europe Trustees Ireland Limited (“DETIL”) during the year. The
related costs were allocated and recharged on an agreed basis, as set out in service level agreements.

3 Loss on ordinary activities before taxation
The loss on ordinary activities before taxation has been determined after charging the following:

2010 2009
€ €
Directors’ remuneration:
Fees - -
Other remuneration including pension contributions 733,542 931,662
Auditor’s remuneration
Audit fees 36,540 36,340
Other 22,500 26,410
Depreciation 461,557 1,513,804
Operating lease rentals 31,629 48,776
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4 Taxation on ordinary activities

2010 2009

(a) Analysis of charge in year € €

Current tax

Irish corporation tax 51,568 52,444

Under /(over) under provision in prior year - (28,915)

Deferred tax 1,498 92,435

Total tax charge 53,066 115,964
(b) Current tax reconciliation

2010 2009
€ €
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation (2,140,265) (2,858,365)
Corporation tax based on standard rate at 12.5% (2009: 12.5%) (267,533) (357,296)
Excess of depreciation over capital allowances (53,283) 83,178
Deficiency/(excess) of deductible over non-deductible expenses (6,528) (80,061)
Differences arising from tax at the higher rate 2,251 12,660
Withholding tax on insurance premiums 51,568 52,444
Group relief surrendered 61,449 129,119
Losses carried forward 263,644 212,400
51,568 52,444
5 Tangible Fixed Assets
As at 31 March 2010
Furniture & Computer
. Software . Total
Equipment Equipment
€ € € €

Cost
At 31 March 2009 1,565,266 3,248,324 1,186,296 5,999,886
Additions during year 1,372 18,613 295,491 315,476
Disposals during year - - (530) (530)
At 31 March 2010 1,566,638 3,266,937 1,481,257 6,314,832
Depreciation
At 31 March 2009 929,888 3,174,769 988,162 5,092,819
Depreciation for year 253,362 50,176 158,019 461,557
Disposals during year - - (530) (530)
At 31 March 2010 1,183,250 3,224,945 1,145,651 5,553,846
Net book value at 31 March 2010 383,388 41,992 335,606 760,986

181/264



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oo00o0o00oo00bDo00noOO(ELD4857)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

As at 31 March 2009
Furnl_ture & Software Cor_nputer Total
Equipment Equipment
€ € € €
Cost
At 31 March 2008 1,435,447 3,188,547 1,028,123 5,652,117
Additions during year 129,819 59,777 158,173 347,769
Disposals during year - - - -
At 31 March 2009 1,565,266 3,248,324 1,186,296 5,999,886
Depreciation
At 31 March 2008 672,614 2,136,914 769,487 3,579,015
Depreciation for year 257,274 1,037,855 218,675 1,513,804
Disposals during year - - - -
At 31 March 2009 929,888 3,174,769 988,162 5,092,819
Net book value at 31 March 2009 635,378 73,555 198,134 907,067
6 Debtors: amounts falling due within one year
2010 2009
€ €
Fee debtors 2,191,249 2,076,781
Prepayments and accrued income 826,605 781,365
Other debtors 121,959 50,525
Corporation Tax 876 -
Amounts owed by related companies 150,462 37,253
Deferred tax 5,607 7,105
3,296,758 2,953,029

In addition, the Company has an unrecognised deferred tax asset of €1,056,028 (2009: €787,384). This has not been
recognised as the directors have applied a prudent approach to recognising this asset.

7 Cash at bank and in hand

2010 2009

€ €

Cash and cash equivalents 4,756,377 7,730,431
4,756,377 7,730,431
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8 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2010 2009
€ €
Accruals 1,177,370 1,716,236
Trade creditors 492,207 253,603
Corporation tax - 497
Amount owed to parent 353,939 322,738
Amount owed to related companies 910,131 523,034
2,933,647 2,816,108

The amount owed to the parent company is unsecured and interest free.

9 Provision for liabilities and charges

2010 2009
€ €
Opening balance 800,000 -
Charge to profit and loss account - 800,000
Utilisation of provision (700,614) -
Closing Balance 99,386 800,000

The provision relates to costs of restructuring, which was included within staff costs in 2009.

10 Called up share capital

2010 2009
€ €
Authorised
400,000 ordinary shares of StgE 1 each
Allotted, called up and fully paid
400,000 ordinary shares of StgE 1 each 492,338 492,338
11 Reconciliation of movement in shareholder’s funds and profit and loss account
2010 2009
€ €
Shareholder’s funds at beginning of year 7,974,419 10,948,748
(Loss) for the financial year (2,193,331) (2,974,329)
Shareholder’s funds at end of year 5,781,088 7,974,419
2010 2009
€ €
Profit and loss account at beginning of year 7,482,081 10,456,410
(Loss) for the financial year (2,193,331) (2,974,329)
Profit and loss account at end of year 5,288,750 7,482,081
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12 Commitments

Annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2010 2009
Land and Other Land and Other

buildings buildings
€ € € €

Operating leases which expire:

Within one year - 23,917 - 49,117
In the second to fifth years inclusive - - - -
Over five years 898,089 - 898,089 -
898,089 23,917 898,089 49,117

Under an agreement, the company has undertaken to provide or procure company secretarial and general administration
and support service to Daiwa Europe Trustees Ireland Limited. In return, the company has agreed that a fee will be paid
for the services provided.

13 Pension costs

2010 2009

€ €

Pensions charge for year 669,482 786,061
Pension charge payable at end of year 44,856 56,837

The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for its directors and employees.

14 Related parties
The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Daiwa Securities Group Inc. whose consolidated financial statements are
publicly available. The Company is availing of the exemptions under Financial Reporting Standard No. 8 ‘Related Party
Disclosures’ to not disclose transactions with other group undertakings which would be eliminated on consolidation in the
financial statements of the group.

15 Cash flow statement
The directors have availed of the exemption contained in Financial Reporting Standard No. 1 (Revised 1996) not to
prepare a cashflow statement as the company’s results are consolidated in the financial statements of its parent, Daiwa
Securities Group Inc., which are publicly available.

16 Ultimate parent company
The Company’s ultimate parent undertaking is Daiwa Securities Group Inc., a company incorporated in Japan. The
largest group in which the results of the company are consolidated is that headed by Daiwa Securities Group Inc. Copies
of the financial statements of Daiwa Securities Group Inc. are available to the public and may be obtained from 9-1
Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-6751, Japan.

The smallest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that headed by Daiwa Securities Trust Europe
Limited. Copies of the financial statements of Daiwa Securities Trust Europe Limited are available to the public any may

be obtained from Block 5, Harcourt Centre, Harcourt Road, Dublin 2, Ireland.

17 Post balance sheet events
There were no significant post balance sheet events affecting the company.
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18 Forward foreign currency contracts

The following forward foreign currency contracts were open as at 31 March 2010.

Sell US Dollar Buy Euro Unrealised Gain / (Loss)

$1,965,000 € 1,365,469 (€92,354)

Sell Japanese Yen

141,000,000 € 1,087,828 (€31,841)

Sell Australian Dollar

$510,000 € 305,105 (€ 40,869)
(€ 165,064)

These hedges will settle quarterly over the period 1 April 2010 to 31 December 2010.
Unrealised gains and losses on these forward foreign currency contracts have not been recognised in the financial
statements as they relate to future income streams. In accordance with the Company’s accounting policies, gains and

losses arising from hedging transactions are recognised in accordance with the underlying transactions.

The following forward foreign currency contracts were open as at 31 March 2009.

Sell US Dollar Buy Euro Unrealised Gain / (Loss)

$7,405,000 €5,277,716 (€ 286,607)

Sell Japanese Yen

216,700,000 € 1,550,958 (€ 101,096)

Sell Australian Dollar

$970,000 € 376,098 €25,211
(€ 362,492)

19 Guarantee under Irish Companies (Amendment) Act, 1986
Under Section 17 of the Irish Companies (Amendment) Act, 1986 companies registered in Ireland may be exempted from
filing their individual accounts provided that their liabilities are irrevocably guaranteed by a Parent Company, which is
required to be a registered Company of a Member State of the European Union. The Parent Company must incorporate
the results of the subsidiaries into its Group accounts. The results of the Company have been consolidated into the results
of the immediate Parent Company and Daiwa Securities Trust Europe Limited has agreed to irrevocably guarantee the
liabilities of the Company as at 31 March 2010, in accordance with Section 17 of the Act.

20 Contingent liabilities

The Company is in receipt of grant assistance in respect of certain employment costs. The Company is contractually liable
to repay all or part of the grant assistance in the event of certain conditions not being fulfilled on an ongoing basis.

21 Approval of the financial statements
The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 17 June 2010.
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Unitholders
For the year ended 31 December 2009

We have audited the financial statements of Daiwa Gaika MMF (the “Fund”)for the year ended 31% December 2009, which
comprise the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, Statement of Operations, Statement of Changes in Net Assets attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Units, the Schedule of Investments and the related notes. These financial statements have
been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

Respective responsibilities of the Manager and the auditors

The Manager’s responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable
Irish law and the accounting standards issued by the Accounting Standards Board and published by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Ireland (Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland) are set out in the Statement of Manager’s
Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for
the Fund’s Unitholders as a body and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland, and are properly prepared in accordance with Irish statute comprising the Unit Trusts
Act, 1990.

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report, and consider whether it is consistent with the audited financial
statements. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the financial statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the Manager in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Fund’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in

Ireland, of the state of the Fund’s affairs at 31 December 2009 and of its results for the year then ended; and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Unit Trusts Act, 1990.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Dublin

Date: 28 APRIL 2010
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Daiwa Europe Fund Managers Ireland Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Daiwa Europe Fund Managers Ireland Limited for the year ended 31 March 2009
which comprise the Profit and Loss Account, Balance Sheet and the related notes. These financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 193 of the Companies Act 1990.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to
them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and the accounting standards issued by the Accounting Standards Board and promulgated by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Ireland (Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland), are set out in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities on page 4.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Acts 1963 to 2006. We also report to you whether, in our opinion: proper books of account
have been kept by the company; whether at the balance sheet date, there exists a financial situation requiring the convening of
an extraordinary general meeting of the company; and whether the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with
the financial statements. In addition, we state whether we have obtained all the information and explanations necessary for the
purposes of our audit, and whether the company’s financial statements are in agreement with the books of account.

We also report to you if, in our opinion, any information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and directors’
transactions is not disclosed and, where practicable, include such information in our report.

We read the Directors’ Report and consider implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements
within it.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.
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Opinion
In our opinion:
the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland, of
the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 March 2009 and of its loss for the year then ended;
the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Acts 1963 to 2006.

We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of our audit. In our
opinion proper books of account have been kept by the company. The financial statements are in agreement with the books of
account.

In our opinion the information given in the directors’ report on pages 2 and 3 is consistent with the financial statements.

The net assets of the company, as stated in the company balance sheet on page 10, are more than half of the amount of its
called-up share capital and, in our opinion, on that basis there did not exist at 31 March 2009 a financial situation which under
Section 40 (1) of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 1983 would require the convening of an extraordinary general meeting of
the company.

KPMG 24 June 2009
Chartered Accountants

Registered Auditor

1 Harbourmaster Place

IFSC

Dublin 1
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DAIWA GAIKA MMF

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Unitholders
For the year ended 31% December 2010

We have audited the financial statements of Daiwa Gaika MMF (the “Fund”)for the year ended 31 December 2010, which
comprise the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, Statement of Operations, Statement of Changes in Net Assets attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Participating Units, the Schedule of Investments and the related notes. These financial statements have
been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

Respective responsibilities of the Manager and the auditors

The Manager’s responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable
Irish law and the accounting standards issued by the Accounting Standards Board and published by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Ireland (Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland) are set out in the Statement of Manager’s
Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for
the Fund’s Unitholders as a body and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland, and are properly prepared in accordance with Irish statute comprising the Unit Trusts
Act, 1990.

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report, and consider whether it is consistent with the audited financial
statements. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the financial statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the Manager in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Fund’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in

Ireland, of the state of the Fund’s affairs at 31%' December 2010 and of its results for the year then ended; and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Unit Trusts Act, 1990.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Dublin

Date: 21 April 2011
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Daiwa Europe Fund Managers Ireland Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Daiwa Europe Fund Managers Ireland Limited for the year ended 31 March 2010
which comprise the Profit and Loss Account, Balance Sheet and the related notes. These financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 193 of the Companies Act 1990.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to
them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and the accounting standards issued by the Accounting Standards Board and promulgated by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Ireland (Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland), are set out in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities on page 4.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Acts 1963 to 2009. We also report to you whether, in our opinion: proper books of account
have been kept by the company; whether at the balance sheet date, there exists a financial situation requiring the convening of
an extraordinary general meeting of the company; and whether the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with
the financial statements. In addition, we state whether we have obtained all the information and explanations necessary for the
purposes of our audit, and whether the company’s financial statements are in agreement with the books of account.

We also report to you if, in our opinion, any information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and directors’
transactions is not disclosed and, where practicable, include such information in our report.

We read the Directors’ Report and consider implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements
within it.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion:
the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland, of
the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 March 2010 and of its loss for the year then ended;
the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Acts 1963 to 20009.
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We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of our audit. In our

opinion proper books of account have been kept by the company. The financial statements are in agreement with the books of
account.

In our opinion the information given in the directors’ report on pages 2 and 3 is consistent with the financial statements.

The net assets of the company, as stated in the company balance sheet on page 10, are more than half of the amount of its
called-up share capital and, in our opinion, on that basis there did not exist at 31 March 2010 a financial situation which under
Section 40 (1) of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 1983 would require the convening of an extraordinary general meeting of
the company.

KPMG 17 June 2010
Chartered Accountants

Registered Auditor

1 Harbourmaster Place

IFSC

Dublin 1
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